



MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A



AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2

### THE USEFULNESS OF IMPACT DAMPERS FOR SPACE APPLICATIONS

### THESIS

AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2

Bruce W. Gibson lst Lt USAF

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited

AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2

# THE USEFULNESS OF IMPACT DAMPERS FOR SPACE APPLICATIONS

### THESIS

Presented to the Faculty of the School of Engineering of the Air Force Institute of Technology in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science

by

Bruce W. Gibson, B.S. 1st Lt USAF

Graduate Astronautical Engineering

March 1983

Approved for public release; distribution unlimited

### **Preface**

The potential usefulness of the impact damper for space applications was first proposed by Dr. Peter Torvik, who suggested a study of it as a thesis topic. This topic was of interest to me not only as an exercise in basic dynamics and mechanics and as an opportunity to acquire laboratory experience, but also as an opportunity to do basic research in a promising field of vibration control that is not common knowledge.

I would like to thank Dr. Torvik both for the freedom he allowed me in this project, and for his knowledgeable advice, which helped me overcome many frustrating stumbling blocks. Thanks are also due to Captain Wesley Cox, for his assistance with the laboratory equipment, and to Captain Patricia Lawlis, who helped me through the tedious process of learning the UNIX computer operating system. Last, I would like to thank Linda Stoddart of the AFIT Library, who did an outstanding job of obtaining reference material spanning fifty years, often from private laboratories or journals published in Europe, Russia, and Japan.

ii

Contents

En and a state of the

Y

raye
Preface
List of Figures
List of Tables
Nomenclature
Abstract
I. Introduction 1
II. Analytical Studies
Free Vibration Impact Damper
III. Laboratory Models
Free Vibration Model
IV. Correlation of Analytical and Laboratory Results. 36
V. Results and Discussion
Free Vibration
VI. Conclusions and Recommendations
Bibliography
Appendix A: Derivation of Equations
Appendix B: Laboratory Models
Appendix C: Computer Simulations
<b>Vita</b>

iii

## List of Figures

Figure		P	age	Ż
1.	Simple Impact Damper	•	2	?
2.	Free Vibration Impact Damper	•	9	)
3.	Forced Vibration Model	•	10	)
4.	Output from Program IDEAL	•	18	}.
5.	Model of Free Vibration Problem Solved in Reference 25	•	24	ļ
6.	Laboratory Model of Free Vibration Impact Damper	•	27	7
7.	Laboratory Model of Forced Vibration Impact Damper	•	28	}
8.	Oscilloscope Traces Showing Strain Versus Time	•	32	2
9.	Damper Efficiency for Different Impact Moment Arms	•	43	3
10.	Damper Efficiency for Different Values of Gap	•	44	ł
11.	Damper Efficiency for Different Values of the Coefficient of Restitution	•	46	;
12.	Damper Efficiency for Different Values of Natural Frequency	•	47	7
13.	Damper Efficiency for Different Values of $m/1+mL^2$	•	48	}
14.	Residual Amplitude for Different Impact Moment Arms	•	51	L.
15.	Residual Amplitude for Different Gap Settings	•	52	2
16.	Residual Amplitudes for Different Coefficients of Restitution	•	53	3

## Figure

Ċ

igure		P	age
17.	Residual Amplitude for Different Values of Natural Frequency	•	54
18.	Residual Amplitude for Different Values of m/I+mL <sup>2</sup>	•	55
19.	Residual Amplitude for Different Values of the Impact Moment Arm on a Base 10 Logarithmic Scale	•	56
20.	Visicorder Trace of Acceleration Versus Time of Forced Vibration Laboratory Model with No Impacting Mass	•	61
21.	Visicorder Trace of Acceleration Versus Time of Forced Vibration Laboratory Model	•	62
22.	Model of Impact Damper Used in Free Vibration Tests	•	72
23.	Laboratory Model of Forced Vibration Impact Damper with Important Parameters	•	73
24.	Coordinates and Angles Used in Deriving the Equations of Motion of the Free Vibration Impact Damper	•	74
25.	Free Body Diagram and Coordinates used in Deriving Equations of Motion of the Free Vibration Impact Damper	•	79
26.	Free Vibration Impact Damper Used in Laborator with Important Parameters	y	88
27.	Support for the Free Vibration Laboratory Model	•	89
28.	Details of Damper Assembly and Impacting Surfaces	•	92
29.	Measured Values of $\delta$ for Different Values of Strain	•	96
30.	Laboratory Model of Forced Vibration Impact Damper	•	101
31.	Laboratory Model of Forced Vibration Impact Damper with Important Parameters	•	102
32.	Low Pass Filter		104

v

Figure

Į.

Ē.

i.

33.	Visicorder Trace of Acceleration Versus Time of Forced Vibration Laboratory Model with No Impacting Mass				
34.	Visicorder Trace of Acceleration Versus Time of Forced Vibration Laboratory Model	106			

## List of Tables

÷.,

Table		Page
1.	Comparison of Computer Simulation and Laboratory Results for s and $\theta_{m_r}$	37
2.	Quantities for Calculation of Coefficient of Restitution	98
3.	Quantities for Calculation of Viscous Damping Factor	99

## Nomenclature

all and a second

Ô

С	 Viscous damping coefficient for $\hat{\theta}$ of the primary system.
c <sub>m</sub>	 Viscous damping coefficient for x of the impact- ing mass.
с <sub>р</sub>	 Specific heat.
C <sub>s</sub>	 Constant factor in the equation relating s to the system parameters.
c <sub>a</sub>	 Viscous damping coefficient for $\alpha$ of the impact- ing mass; $c_{\alpha} \cong c_{m}^{L}$ .
c <sub>θ</sub>	 Constant factor in the equation relating $\theta_{m}$ to the system parameters.
đ	 Total horizontal distance the impacting mass can travel; referred to as the effective gap.
đ	 Length of the flex plate.
e	 Coefficient of restitution.
E	 Modulus of elasticity of steel.
ΔE	 Change in total energy.
g	 Acceleration of gravity.
Δh	 Change in height.
H <sub>0</sub>	 Magnitude of the total angular momentum about point 0 of both the primary system and the impacting mass.
H <sub>0</sub> b	 Magnitude of the angular momentum of the primary system about point 0.
<sup>H</sup> o <sub>m</sub>	 Magnitude of the angular momentum of the impact- ing mass about point 0.

viii

-- Number of impacts.

i

Ι

I'

I<sub>m</sub>

k

k m

L

<sup>L</sup>b

- -- Moment of inertia of the primary system about its rotation point.
- -- Moment of inertia of the cross-sectional area.
- -- Moment of inertia of the impacting mass about the rotation point of the primary system.
- I'B -- Moment of inertia of the cross-sectional area
   of the beam in the forced vibration labor bory
   model.
- I's -- Moment of inertia of the cross-sectional and of the flex plate used in the free vibrat a laboratory model.
  - -- Stiffness constant resisting the angular unaplacement of the primary system.
  - -- Stiffness constant resisting an x displacement of the impacting mass.
  - -- Magnitude of the moment arm used to calculate the angular momentum changes (for the primary system and the impacting mass) due to an impact.
  - -- Length of the beam used in the forced vibration laboratory model.
- L -- Distance from the rotation point of the impacting mass to the impacting mass.
- m -- Mass of the secondary, or impacting, mass.
- M -- Moment in a beam.
- Ms -- Moment applied to the primary system by the flex plate.
- M<sub>T</sub> -- Total mass of the primary system.
- O -- Point about which the primary system rotates.
- q -- Damped frequency of the primary system.

q -- Damped frequency of the impacting mass.

ix

-- Maximum amplitude of the primary system at time r zero. -- Distance from the point 0 to the center of mass r<sub>Om</sub> of the impacting mass. r<sub>Om</sub> -- Vector from the point 0 to the center of mass of the impacting mass. -- Distance from the point 0 to the point where rs the flex plate is attached to support the primary system in the free vibration laboratory model. -- Constant time rate of change of  $\theta$  referred to S as the damper efficiency. -- Time. t -- Time of the ith impact. t<sub>i</sub> t<sub>i</sub> (+) -- Time immediately after the ith impact. t, (-) -- Time immediately before the ith impact. -- Time during the jth cycle when the maximum ti amplitude is reached. -- Time since the last impact,  $\Delta t = t - t_i$ . Δt ΔT° -- Change in temperature.  $\Delta \mathbf{T}_{\max}$ -- Change in the maximum kinetic energy. -- Distance from the center of the flex plate to u the surface. V -- Velocity. V<sub>m</sub> -- Velocity of the impacting mass. v<sub>m</sub> -- Vector velocity of the impacting mass.  $\mathbf{W}_{\mathbf{T}}$ -- Total weight of the primary system. -- Time dependent horizontal position of the impactх ing mass. -- Time rate of change of x. х -- Coordinate along the length of the flex plate. У

nte eta eta eta eta e

х

**Greek** Characters

-- Angle between the strings suspending the impactα ing mass and the vertical. See Figure 24. -- Logarithmic decrement. δ -- Strain on the surface of the flex plate. ε -- Measured strain on the surface of the flex plate. ε<sub>m</sub> -- Viscous damping factor. ζ -- The angular displacement of the centerline of θ the flex plate from the vertical. Along the flex plate  $\theta$  is a function of y. At y = d  $\theta$  is the angular displacement of the primary system from the vertical. See Figure 24. <sup>θ</sup>mj -- Maximum amplitude of the primary system during cycle j. <sup>θ</sup>m<sub>0</sub> -- Initial maximum amplitude of the primary system.  $\theta_{m_r}$ -- Amplitude of the primary system at which the impact damper becomes ineffective, referred to as the residual amplitude. -- Derivative of  $\theta$  with respect to time. θ  $\theta_{\text{max}}$ -- Final maximum angular velocity of the primary system.  $\theta_{\text{max}}$ -- Initial maximum angular velocity of the primary system. -- Mass per unit length of the beam in the forced ρ vibration laboratory model. -- Frequency at which the forced vibration laboraω<sub>F</sub> tory model is excited. -- Natural frequency of the primary system. ωn

xi

### AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2

.

#### Abstract

The usefulness of the impact damper in eliminating vibrations is studied analytically and experimentally. Laboratory models of vibrating systems are constructed to evaluate the performance of the impact damper in reducing or eliminating forced and free vibrations. A computer simulation of a single degree-of-freedom primary system in free vibration employing an impact damper is constructed for the same purpose. Laboratory free vibration results are compared to the computer simulation in order to judge its accuracy.

The computer simulation is employed to determine the impact damper's performance in free vibration as the system's parameters are varied. Two significant measures of the damper's effectiveness are obtained as approximate functions of the system's parameters.

Observations regarding reduction in amplitude and steady state motion were made for the impact damper in forced vibration.

xii

# THE USEFULNESS OF IMPACT DAMPERS FOR SPACE APPLICATIONS

#### I. Introduction

An impact damper, also referred to in the literature as a rattle damper or an acceleration damper, is a simple, passive damping device. It operates by allowing a vibrating primary mass to go through a series of collisions with a secondary mass carried in or on the primary mass. Figure 1 shows one of the simplest models of an impact damper, with a primary mass M free to travel in one dimension only, acted upon by a forcing function F(t), a secondary mass m, a spring of stiffness k, and a dashpot with a damping constant c.

In the simplest case, the motion of the secondary, or impacting, mass m is assumed to be a result of collisions with the primary mass alone, so the impacting mass has a constant velocity between impacts. If F(t) is sinusoidal, then the momentum exchange and the energy dissipation resulting from the impacts usually results in a decrease in the amplitude of motion of the primary mass. If the primary mass is in free vibration (F(t) = 0), then the impacts cause a more rapid decay in the amplitude of the



motion of the primary mass through energy dissipation and momentum exchange.

This simple damper could be of practical use for space applications in eliminating the unwanted vibrations of antennas, telescopes, or any other flexible structure which tends to oscillate about its intended orientation. In the near vacuum of space, external damping forces are essentially zero. Thus, such structures must have internal damping designed into them. If the impact damper provides sufficient, reliable damping without adding prohibitive mass to the total payload, it could be a solution to some oscillation problems.

An extensive literature search turned up much work on the effectiveness of the impact damper in reducing forced vibrations. Contradictory conclusions were identified. Paget (Ref 1) probably did the earliest writing on the impact damper, but the first serious analytical work appears to be that of Lieber and Jenson (Ref 2). In their paper, work and energy considerations were used to solve for the one degree of freedom motion of a primary mass undergoing perfectly inelastic collisions with a secondary mass. These results were used to calculate a damping factor which was verified experimentally through comparison with the damping observed in the free vibration of a beam with an impact damper attached. Their solution predicted the impact damper would be most efficient (do the most work

per cycle) if two impacts per cycle occurred with impacts
equally spaced in time.

Grubin and Lieber (Ref 3) gave a more straightforward solution of the motion of the system for collisions ranging from perfectly inelastic to perfectly elastic. In Reference (4), it is shown that solutions are possible when stable and symmetric motion is assumed; i.e., that two impacts occur at equal time intervals during the cycle. This is referred to as symmetric, two impact per cycle motion. Such motion has often been assumed, and in Reference (5) was reported to occur when an impact damper was attached to a cantilever beam in forced vibration. Grubin and Lieber (Ref 6) went on to do a stability analysis on this symmetric, two impact per cycle motion. Lieber and Duffy (Ref 7) modeled a cantilever beam with an impact damper as a system composed of four lumped masses and used an electric analog model of this system to study the effects of parametric changes on the dampers' performance.

Feygin (Ref 8) solved and did a stability analysis for the motion of an impact damper similar to that shown in Figure 1, but with the motion of the impacting mass between impacts subjected to dry friction. Masri (Ref 9) started with the assumption of symmetric, two impact per cycle operation and solved for the motion of the system under sinusoidal excitation. He also did a stability analysis to show this motion did exist for a

wide range of system parameters, and verified his results experimentally and with both digital and analog computer simulations.

Masri (Ref 10) solved for the motion of a forced system with any number of impacts per cycle. Sadek (Ref 11) assumed two impacts per cycle and used a Fourier series representation of the impacting forces to come to the conclusion that, in general, symmetric impacts do not occur, especially for system parameters leading to the maximum reduction in amplitude of the primary system. He used a laboratory model to verify his results.

Sadek and Mills (Ref 12) solved for the motion of the system in forced vibration with the impact damper affected by gravity, while Sadek and Williams (Ref 13) then provided a stability analysis on these results. Sadek and Thomas (Ref 14) solved for the motion of a system in forced vibration and with the secondary mass attached to a spring and influenced by gravity.

Masri and Sadek have both published several papers on impact dampers with carefully solved equations of motion and stability analyses. The only significant difference in their approach is that Masri, and many other authors, modeled the impacts as being of infinitely short duration, thereby causing a discontinuous change in the velocities, but not the positions, of the two masses. Sadek uses a Fourier series representation of the impact force and

5

「ここと」という言語ので、などのこと

treats impacts as being of short, but finite duration. Masri's (Ref 9) solution for the sinusoidally forced system shows symmetric, two impact per cycle motion to be possible for a wide range of system parameters, and that this kind of system gives the maximum reduction in the primary system's amplitude. Sadek's (Ref 11) solution is for a system at a specified ratio of secondary mass to primary mass and at a specified forcing frequency. This solution gives only one value for the gap in which the secondary mass travels which will give symmetry, and this gap does not give maximum reduction in amplitude. Masri (Ref 10) also predicts that the amplitude decreases with an increase in the ratio of the secondary mass to the primary mass, while Sadek (Ref 11) says that there is an optimum value for this ratio, and that increasing it beyond this point increases the system's amplitude.

.

Roy, Rocke, and Foster (Ref 15) did an analytical and experimental study of the impact damper in the center of a beam in bending vibration, using both a simply supported beam and a beam with both ends clamped. They used both a closed form solution for the motion of the beam between impacts and a discrete mass model of the system to do numerical calculations of the motion of the beam. These numerical solutions were verified with experimental results. All previous researchers did the analytical work

assuming a rigid bodied, single degree of freedom primary system.

Dokainish and Elmaraghy (Ref 16) did a computer simulation of an impact damper and produced a series of curves from which damper performance can be predicted for a given set of system parameters. Yamada (Ref 17) solved for the motion of a sinusoidally excited impact damper similar to Figure 1, but with a piecewise linear spring. Other solutions to the forced motion of different impact dampers can be found in References (18), (19), (20), (21), and (22).

Yasuda and Toyoda (Ref 23), considered the usefulness of an impact damper in reducing the free vibration of a lightly damped system. They used experimental results to obtain parametric relations which could be used to solve for the damping.

The purpose of this thesis is to examine the usefulness of the impact damper in reducing both forced and free vibrations. A laboratory model and a computer model of a freely vibrating system with an impact damper were constructed. These models were used to determine damper performance as coefficient of restitution e, mass of impacting mass m, distance between impacting surfaces d, and other parameters were varied. The forced vibration case was examined using a laboratory model consisting of an upright flexible beam with an impact damper on top and a sinusoidal angular displacement applied to the bottom.

7

### II. Analytical Studies

The motion of the free vibration and forced vibration impact damper is considered in this chapter. The analysis is for the types of impact dampers depicted in Figures 2 and 3, which are the types used in the laboratory studies. The motion of the free vibration impact damper of Figure 2 can be followed analytically through any number of impacts. The solution to the motion of the forced vibration impact damper of Figure 3 is not completely described in this thesis, but some useful information is obtained. The equations given in this chapter are derived in detail in Appendix A.

### Free Vibration Impact Damper

The primary system of the free vibration impact damper of Figure 2 is the damper assembly, which provides the impacting surfaces, and the beam. The impacting mass is not considered part of the primary system. The angular displacement  $\theta$  of the primary system can be described as a rotation about an axis perpendicular to the plane of Figure 2 and containing point 0, called the rotation point. Between impacts, the primary system is acted upon by the flex plate, gravity, and viscous damping. The equation





of motion of the primary system between impacts is, for small values of  $\theta$ :

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial \theta} + c\theta + \left( W_{T}r_{0\pi} + \frac{EI'_{s}}{d_{s}} \right) \theta = 0$$
 (1)

where:

- I = moment of inertia of the primary system about 0, with units of mass • length<sup>2</sup>;
- c = viscous damping constant, with units of force ·
   length · time;
- $W_m$  = total weight of the primary system;
- r\_0m = distance from 0 to the center of mass of the
  primary system;
  - E = modulus of elasticity of the flex plate
     material;

d = length of the flex plate.

This is more conveniently used in the form:

$$\mathbf{I}\boldsymbol{\theta} + \mathbf{c}\boldsymbol{\theta} + \mathbf{k}\boldsymbol{\theta} = \mathbf{0} \tag{2}$$

where:

$$k = W_{T}r_{0m} + \frac{EI's}{d_{s}}$$

and k has units of force · length. The motion of the primary system between impacts is described by Equation (1) if the rotation point 0 is stationary. This is shown to be approximately true in Appendix A, where point 0 is shown to be located where the center of the flex plate is when it is undeformed.

Solving Equation (2) for  $\theta$  between impacts i and i+l gives:

$$\theta (\Delta t) = e^{\left(-\frac{c}{2I} \Delta t\right)} \left[ \left( \frac{\dot{\theta} (t_{i}^{(+)})}{q} + \frac{\theta (t_{i}^{(+)})c}{2Iq} \right) \sin q\Delta t + \theta (t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q\Delta t \right] (3)$$

where  $\Delta t$  is the time since impact i,  $\theta(t_i^{(+)})$  and  $\dot{\theta}(t_i^{(+)})$ are the angular position and angular velocity after impact i, and

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{k}{I} - \left(\frac{c}{2I}\right)^2}$$

If there is no viscous damping (c=0) then:

$$\theta(\Delta t) = \frac{\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)})}{q} \sin q\Delta t + \theta(t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q\Delta t \qquad (4)$$

and

.

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{k}{I}}$$

The equation of motion for the suspended impacting mass between collisions is:

$$mL_{m}^{2\alpha} + c_{\alpha}^{\alpha} + mgL_{m}^{\alpha} = 0$$
 (5)

where:

m = mass of impacting mass;

- L<sub>m</sub> = distance of the impacting mass from its rotation point;
  - a = angular displacement of the strings suspending the impacting mass from the vertical;
- $c_{\alpha}$  = viscous damping constant, with units of force · length · time; and
  - g = acceleration of gravity.

For small values of  $\alpha$ , this motion is almost entirely in the horizontal direction or x direction. Therefore, Equation (3) can be approximated as:

$$mx + c_m x + k_m x = 0$$
 (6)

where:

$$x \approx L_m \alpha;$$
  
 $c_m = c_\alpha / L_m^2;$  and  
 $k_m = mg / L_m.$ 

 $\mathbf{c}_{m}$  has units of force  $\cdot$  time/length and  $\mathbf{k}_{m}$  has units of force/length.

Solving Equation (6) for x between impacts i and i+1 gives:

$$\mathbf{x}(\Delta t) = e^{\left(-\frac{c_{m}}{2m}\Delta t\right)} \left[ \left(\frac{\dot{\mathbf{x}}(t_{i}^{(+)})}{q_{m}} + \frac{\mathbf{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})c_{m}}{2mq_{m}}\right) \sin q_{m}\Delta t + \mathbf{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})\cos q_{m}\Delta t \right]$$
(7)

where  $x(t_i^{(+)})$  and  $\dot{x}(t_i^{(+)})$  are the position and velocity immediately after impact i, and:

$$q_{m} = \sqrt{\frac{k_{m}}{m} - (\frac{c_{m}}{2m})^{2}}$$

If there is no viscous damping, then:

$$x(\Delta t) = \frac{\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})}{q_{m}} \sin q_{m} \Delta t + x(t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q_{m} \Delta t \qquad (8)$$

and:

$$q_{m} = \sqrt{\frac{k_{m}}{m}}$$

Finally, if there is no viscous damping or gravity effects, the impacting mass has constant velocity between impacts, so:

$$x(\Delta t) = x(t_{i}^{(+)}) + x(t_{i}^{(+)})\Delta t$$
 (9)

The initial conditions used in the solutions to Equations (2) and (6) for  $\theta$  and x during the motion between impact i and impact i+1 are  $\theta$ ,  $\dot{\theta}$ , x, and x evaluated at time  $t_i^{(+)}$  (immediately after impact i). If impacts are assumed to be of infinitely short duration (during which  $\theta$  and x remain unchanged, and  $\dot{\theta}$  and x change discontinuously), then the initial conditions can be obtained in terms of  $\theta$ ,  $\dot{\theta}$ , x, and x evaluated at time  $t_i^{(-)}$  (immediately before impact i). The positions are given by:

$$\theta(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \theta(t_{i}^{(-)})$$
 (10)

$$x(t_{i}^{(+)}) = x(t_{i}^{(-)})$$
 (11)

Angular momentum is conserved across the impact, so:

$$i\hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)}) + m\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)})L = i\hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)}) + m\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})L$$

Also, the velocities across an impact are related by:

$$e[x(t_{i}^{(-)}) - \theta(t_{i}^{(-)})L] = \theta(t_{i}^{(+)})L - x(t_{i}^{(+)})$$

where e is the coefficient of restitution. These two relations give:

$$\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \frac{L}{I+mL^{2}} [\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})I(1+e) + \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)})(mL - \frac{Ie}{L})]$$
(12)

$$\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \frac{1}{1+mL^{2}} [\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})(1-mL^{2}e) + \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)})mL(1+e)]$$
(13)

Using Equations (10) to (13), the position and velocity of both the beam and impacting mass are obtained at time  $t_i^{(+)}$  (immediately after the ith impact) in terms

of the positions and velocities at time  $t_i^{(-)}$  (immediately before the ith impact). If the overall system is started with known initial conditions at time  $t_0^{=0}$ , and if the times of impacts  $t_1$ ,  $t_2$ ,  $t_3$ ... are known, the exact solutions up to time  $t_1^{(-)}$  can be solved in terms of the initial conditions at  $t_0$ . The initial conditions at  $t_1^{(+)}$  can then be solved in terms of the final conditions at  $t_1^{(-)}$ ; these initial conditions can be used to solve for the exact solutions from  $t_1^{(+)}$  to  $t_2^{(-)}$ . Initial conditions and exact solutions can then be obtained from time  $t_2^{(+)}$  to  $t_3^{(-)}$ , and this process can be continued for as many impacts as is desired.

This process assumes that all impact times  $t_i$  are known. Actually, impact time  $t_i$  must be found by iteration, using the known solutions after time  $t_{i-1}^{(+)}$  and the requirement that the suspended mass must remain between the two stops. The time  $t_i$  is then defined as the time when the impacting mass first comes in contact with either stop after time  $t_{i-1}^{(+)}$ .

This solution technique was used in the two computer programs of Appendix C. The first program, IDEAL, uses Equations (4) and (9) to trace the motion of the primary system and impacting mass in an environment with no viscous damping or gravity. The second program, LABSIM, uses equations (3) and (7) to include viscous damping and gravity effects on the system. Included in Appendix C

are the results obtained by running programs IDEAL and LABSIM.

.

Program IDEAL was run for a variety of values for M, L, e, q, and d, where d is the distance between the impacting surfaces. The results of one of these runs is given in Figure 4. Whenever m, L, and q are greater than zero, e is positive and less than one, and d is positive and less than 2  $\theta_{max}$  L (d < 2  $\theta_{max}$  L is necessary for impacts to occur), the impact damper will initially bring about a rapid reduction in amplitude. After the maximum amplitude attained by the primary system during each cycle declines to a certain value, the impact damper becomes much less effective, with a much slower reduction in amplitude of the primary system. In the region where the damper is effective, the maximum amplitude attained is observed to decrease approximately linearly with time, and a linear function is fit to the peaks using a least squares method. The decline in maximum amplitude with time is denoted by s, and is a measure of the impact damper's performance. The maximum amplitude attained when the impact damper becomes almost ineffective is denoted  $\theta_{m_{eq}}$ , and is also a measure of damper performance.

It is important to determine if s and  $\theta_{m_r}$  are dependent upon parameters other than M, L, e, q, and d. All of the computer simulations of the impact damper began with the primary system displaced in the negative direction 0.1

mass= .2000000009e-02 effective d= .250000000e+00 e= .5000000000e+00 x(0)= -.9800000049e-01 deltat= .999999978e-02

.

the time	iterati	on did	not conve	erge for	1⇒ 45			
Impact	time	deltat	thetas	- x	tdotv	xdot	thetam	dthetam
1	.06769	.#67687	.Ø121	098000	2.2958	7.8866	.Ø926	0074
2	.122.37	.054383	.ø923	.330895	.4363	-2.7636	.Ø94ø	.0013
3	.18766	.Ø65595	.Ø11Ø	.149614	-2.251Ø	-6.2389	. ສາມາ	0033
4	.26345	.Ø75782	øeao	323185	.2110	4.0967	.0003	ØIJ14
5	.41144	.147998	. ນ7 ນ9	.283116	-1.1169	-6.0511	. Ø338	0055
6	.50952	.098080	0031	31ø375	4493	1.727Ø	.9859	.0012
7	.55843	.Ø409Ø5	0453	225918	1.7234	4.9869	.0825	ØØ26
8	.66214	.103713	.Ø746	.29129Ø	6468	-4.9173	.Ø789	0035
9	.78197	.119824	<b>-</b> .Ø775	297915	.176Ø	3.2623	.Ø779	ØØ11
1ø	:86711	.Ø85146	.Ø47Ø	020143	1.5448	3.5436	.Ø776	0002
11	<b>.9</b> 3917	.072054	.Ø494	.235180	-1.2663	-6.2654	.Ø7Ø8	0069
12	1.02067	.ø81503	0675	275461	<b>-</b> .7Ø37	.9683	.Ø731	.0023
. 13	1.07296		0448	224804	1.3695	<b>4.</b> 181Ø	.9797	0024
14	1.18756	.114606	.ø58ø	.254357	7959	-4.9939	.Ø662	0046
15	1.29308	.105511	<b>-</b> .Ø662	272560	1705	2.1134	.0665	

<pre>impact=</pre>	1 errmom= .10	6264515e-Ø7 errvel*	.238418579e-ØG
impact=	2 errmom= .74	5058060e-03 errvel*	238418579e-Ø6
impact=	3 errmom= .74	50580000-00 errvel*	=953674316e-06
Impact=	4 errmom= .ØØ	ມີມົນມີມິມມີe+ມີຟີ errvel=	■ .476837158e-Ø6
impact=	5 errmom=11	1758703e-07 errvel=	233418579e-Ø6
impact=	6 errmoin=37	2529000e-08 errvel=	= .238418579e-Ø6
impact=	7 errmom= .29	CØ23224e-Ø7 errvel=	596#46448e-#6
1mpact=	8 errmom=74	5058060e-08 errvel=	=233418579e-06
Impact=	9 errmom= .37	2529030e-08 errvel=	■ .238418579e-Ø6
impact=	10 errmom= .1	66473910e-Ø7 errvel	=119209290e-06
impact=	11 errmom=2	98923224e-07 errvel	= .238418579e-Ø6
Impact=	12 errmom#1	11758709e-07 errvel	= .238418579e-ØG
impact=	13 errmom=5	58793545e-08 errvel	= .238418579e-Ø6
impact=	14 errmom#1	117587Ø9e-Ø7 errvel	=238418579e-Ø6
impact=	15 errmom= .0	0000000000e+00 errvel	= .476837158e-Ø6

1mpac <sup>-</sup> 2 4 7 1Ø 13	t thetam .Ø94Ø .Ø893 .Ø825 .Ø776 .Ø7Ø7	time .1295 .3853 .6445 .9Ø39 1.1632	dthetam 0060 0047 0068 0048 0069	dtime .1295 .2558 .2592 .2594 .2593	Maximum amplitude (thetam) and time it is attained for each cycle of primary system
---	---	--	---	--	---

Fig. 4. Output from Program IDEAL

Impact	: thetam	time	dthetam	dtime
26	.2410	2.4622	ø59ø	2.4622
28	.ø354	2.7238	ØØ56	.2616
3ø	.Ø298	2.9863	ØØ57	.2625
32	.Ø239	3.2495	<b>Ø</b> 058	.2632
34	.Ø18Ø	3.5136	ØIJ59	.2641
36	.Ø117	3.7778	ØØ63	.2642
38	.0056	4.1299	0061	.2521
39	.øø55	4.2669	Ø£#1	.237Ø
4Ø	.6044	4.5122	ØØ11	.2453
42	.øø25	5.2522	0019	.7400
43	.0024	5.7657	0001	.5135
up to	the ll			

peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q=  $.6432\Im 1843c-\Im 1$  and s=  $-.123949796e-\Im 1$  with max error=  $.9575\Im 3542e-\Im 2$  at peak= 11 and variance=  $.354233722e-\Im 3$ 

Fig. 4--Continued

radians, and with the impacting mass in contact with the positive stop. In order to determine how important these initial conditions were, both the initial position and velocity of the impacting mass was varied. Varying the initial position of the impacting mass through a range of +1" to -1" from the center of the gaps, and giving it a velocity ranging from +2 ft/sec to -2 ft/sec led to a ±4% variation of s from its average value. Doubling the initial amplitude of the system from  $\theta_{m_0} = 0.08$  radians to  $\theta_{m_0} = 0.16$ radians increased s by 20 percent. None of these changes significantly affected  $\theta_{m_r}$ . These results were for I = 0.1893 slug - ft<sup>2</sup>, impact mass = 0.001 slug, L = 2.23',  $d = 3^{"}$ , and  $\omega = 25$  rad/sec.

Initial conditions obviously have an effect on the damper efficiency s. This effect does not justify complicating the analysis of s by considering initial conditions, especially if s is evaluated while keeping  $\theta_{m_0}$ constant. However, the variation of s with initial amplitude  $\theta_{m_0}$  suggests that the system's decline in amplitude is not perfectly linear, only approximately so.

An important energy consideration for space operations is that the only energy dissipation will be due to the impacts. Whatever kinetic or potential energy is lost due to these impacts will be converted to heat, which will be distributed between the primary system and the impacting mass. This heat can only be dissipated through radiation,
which is a very slow process. Consider a primary system with inertia I about its rotation point and a natural frequency  $\omega_n$ . If this system's only energy loss is due to impact damping, which reduces the system's amplitude from  $\theta_{m_0}$  to  $\theta_{m_r}$ , then the change in total energy equals the change in maximum kinetic energy, so:

$$\Delta \mathbf{E} = \Delta \mathbf{T}_{\max} = \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{I} \left( \theta_{0_{\max}} \right)^2 - \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{I} \left( \dot{\theta}_{f_{\max}} \right)^2$$
(14)

where  $\theta_0$  is the initial maximum angular velocity, and  $\theta_0$  is the final maximum angular velocity. From this it max is easy to obtain:

$$\Delta \mathbf{E} = \frac{1}{2} \mathbf{I} \omega_n^2 (\theta_{m_0}^2 - \theta_{m_r}^2)$$
(15)

This  $\Delta E$  is the energy converted to heat.

A worst case example is worked out for the laboratory model's values of m, I and  $\omega_n$ , assuming all of the heat goes to raise the temperature of the impacting mass. For the smallest mass used, m = 0.000481 slug (about 1/4 ounce), I = 0.188 slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup>,  $\omega_n$  = 25.9 radians per second, and  $\theta_m$  and  $\theta_m$  are chosen to be 0.10 radians and zero, respectively. This gives:

$$\Delta E = \frac{1}{2}(0.188)(25.9)^{2}(0.10)^{2}$$
$$= 0.631 \text{ lb} \cdot \text{ft}$$
$$= 8.103 \times 10^{-4} \text{ BTU}$$

The temperature of the impacting mass will then be raised by:

$$\Delta T^{\circ} = \frac{\Delta E}{c_{\rm p} m}$$
(16)

where  $c_p$  is the specific heat of the material. If  $c_p = 0.109 \text{ BTU}/(\text{lb} \cdot ^\circ \text{F})$  (the value for nickel steel at room temperature according to Reference 24), then

$$\Delta T^{\circ} = 0.048$$
 °F

While this temperature increase is of no significance, the fact that the impacts convert kinetic energy to heat should be remembered when designing an impact damper, especially if a very small mass is expected to absorb a great deal of energy.

### Forced Vibration

The forced vibration impact damper depicted in Figure 3 consists of an upright slender beam with a damper assembly on top and an impacting mass free to move between the stops of the damper assembly. A time dependent angular displacement is applied as a boundary condition to the bottom of the beam. The motion of the primary system, consisting of the beam and damper assembly, was not obtained. However, the motion of a similar system in free vibration, shown in Figure 5, was obtained in Reference (25). From this solution, the natural frequencies can be found.

The undamped, free vibration of the system depicted in Figure 5 is, according to Reference (25):

$$x(y,t) = X(y)e^{i\omega_{F}t}$$
(17)

where:

$$X(y) = C_1 \sin (\beta y) + C_2 \cos (\beta y)$$
  
+  $C_3 \sinh (\beta y) + C_4 \cosh (\beta y)$  (18)

and:

$$3 = \sqrt[4]{\frac{\omega_{\rm F}^2 \rho}{\rm EI'_{\rm B}}}$$
(19)

$$C_{2} = -C_{4} = C_{1} \frac{\sin \beta L_{b} + \sinh \beta L_{b}}{\cos \beta L_{b} + \cosh \beta L_{b}}$$

 $c_3 = -c_1$ 

 $C_1$  is determined by the initial conditions, while  $\beta$  is solved for using:

$$1 + \frac{1}{(\cos \beta L_b)(\cosh \beta L_b)} + \beta \frac{M}{\rho} (\tanh \beta L_b - \tan \beta L_b) = 0$$
(20)



Т, У

Fig. 5. Model of Free Vibration Problem Solved in Reference 25  $\rho$  is the mass per unit length along the flexible beam, M is the total mass of the damper assembly at the top of the beam, and  $\omega_{\rm F}$  is the natural frequency of this system. Once  $\beta$  is obtained from Equation (20),  $\omega_{\rm F}$  can be found using Equation (19).

#### III. Laboratory Models

Two impact damping models were designed and constructed to experimentally study the performance of the damper in forced and free vibration. The equations c? Chapter II were derived to apply to the models depicted in Figures 6 and 7. The free vibration model of Figure 6 was used to verify the analysis of Chapter II. The forced vibration model of Figure 7 was used to take measurements and make observations on its motion. Details on both of these models, the measurement equipment and techniques, and the conversion of the measurements to actual displacements are given in Appendix B.

#### Free Vibration Model

The laboratory model of Figure 6 consisted of an aluminum beam suspended by a short, flexible piece of steel acting as a flex plate, with the damper assembly mounted on the bottom. The impacting mass is suspended from a point above the entire system to minimize friction forces. The quantities needed to evaluate the motion using Equations (3) and (7) are:

> I = 0.188 slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup> c = 0.02 lb  $\cdot$  ft  $\cdot$  sec





$$k = W_{T} r_{0m} + \frac{EI'_{S}}{d_{S}}$$

$$= 1565 lb \cdot in$$

$$W_{T} = 2.91 lb$$

$$r_{0m} = 15.765"$$

$$E = 28 \times 10^{6} lb \cdot in^{2}$$

$$I'_{S} = 1/6144 in^{4}$$

$$d_{S} = 0.25'$$

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{k}{I} - (\frac{c}{2I})^{2}}$$

$$= 26.34 rad/sec$$

$$m = 0.000481 slug, 0.00149 slug, 0.00503 slug$$

$$c_{m} = 0.000217, 0.0000235, 0.0000267 lb \cdot sec/ft$$

$$k_{m} = mg/L_{m}$$

$$= 0.00221, 0.00685, 0.0231 lb/ft$$

$$q = 32.174 ft/sec^{2}$$

$$L_{m} = 7'$$

$$q_{m} = \sqrt{\frac{k_{m}}{m} - (\frac{c_{m}}{2m})^{2}}$$

$$= 2.14 rad/sec$$

Quantities needed to obtain the initial conditions after each impact using Equations (10) through (13) are:

$$L = 2.21'$$
  
 $e = 0.4 - 0.5$ 

The measurement of these quantities is discussed in Appendix B, but some comments are in order here. The values of I, W<sub>T</sub>, r<sub>Om</sub>, d<sub>s</sub>, I'<sub>s</sub>, m, L<sub>m</sub> and L were measured, weighed, and calculated to an acceptable degree of accuracy with little uncertainty. E was obtained from Reference 26.  ${\bf c}$  and  ${\bf c}_{\rm m}$  were obtained by measuring the reduction in amplitude of the freely oscillating primary system and impacting mass after a known number of cycles; c and  $c_m$  could then be calculated by the logarithmic decrement method. The value of c obtained in this manner varied from 0.01 to 0.04 lbs  $\cdot$  sec/ft, c = 0.02 was taken as the approximate value. The value obtained for  $c_m$  did not vary significantly for different tests, but the impacting mass was traveling much slower when these measurements were made than when it was used in the impact damper. Since damping forces are not always directly proportional to velocity, as Equation (6) treats them, this could be a source of error. e was obtained by allowing each of the impacting masses to swing as a pendulum a known distance and strike the impacting surface of the primary system, and then measuring the recoil of the primary system and the impacting mass. These known

quantities and measurements were converted into velocities for the primary system and impacting mass both before and after the impact, from which e was determined. 0.4 and 0.5 are the upper and lower values of e obtained. Finally, while q = 26.34 rad/sec was the calculated value for the damped frequency of the system, the actual frequency of the system was measured as 25.9 rad/sec.

The motion of the system was measured using two SR-4 type AD-7 strain gages, centered on opposite sides of the flex plate. These gages were connected to a Q-amp in a Type 535A oscilloscope. The strain  $\varepsilon$  obtained in this manner could be converted to radians of displacement of the primary system using:

$$\theta = 4.80 \times 10^{-5} \varepsilon \tag{21}$$

where  $\varepsilon$  is measured in micro inches per inch. This relation is obtained in Appendix B, and is only valid for small values of  $\theta$ , where the relation between  $\varepsilon$  and  $\theta$  is linear.

Photographs of the oscilloscope trace were made to obtain the beam deflection as a function of time. Some of these photographs are shown in Figure 8. The actual distance between the impacting surfaces was 3" in this figure, but the actual distance the impacting mass could travel between the impacting surfaces was 3" minus the diameter of the impacting mass. The diameter of the 0.000481 slug mass was 15/32", the 0.00149 slug mass was





.

•



57



11/16", and the 0.00503 slug mass was 1-1/32". d is the actual horizontal distance between impacting surfaces that the impacting mass can travel.

It can be seen from Figure 8 that when the impact damper is operating, the maximum angular displacement reached by the primary system decreases linearly with time. This is not the constant damping of an exponentially decaying system. The usual measures of damping, such as logarithmic decrement, will not be independent of the amplitude of the system. It is also apparent that the impact damper ceases to be effective after the maximum amplitude obtained during a cycle decreases to a certain value. This value is denoted  $\theta_{m_r}$ , and is referred to as the residual amplitude. When the damper is effective,  $\theta_{m_j} > \theta_{m_r}$ , where  $\theta_{m_j}$  is the maximum amplitude attained by the primary system during cycle j. This implies that the maximum angular displacement attained during the jth cycle can be given by:

$$\theta_{m_j} = r - st_j$$
(22)

where  $\theta_{m_j}$  is the maximum angular deflection attained during cycle j; t<sub>j</sub> is the time at which the system reaches maximum amplitude during cycle j; r would be the amplitude  $\theta_{m_0}$  of the system if it were started with zero velocity at  $t_j = t_0 = 0$ ; and s is the rate at which the

system's maximum amplitude decreases with time, which will be referred to as the damper efficiency.

## Forced Vibration Model

Ì.

The laboratory model of a continuous system in forced vibration, depicted in Figure 7, consisted of a flexible, upright steel beam, with a time dependent angular displacement applied to the base, and a damper assembly on top. The quantities needed to obtain the natural frequency from equations (16) and (17) are:

 $L_{b} = 18.5"$  M = 0.01382 slug  $\rho = 0.00110 \text{ slug/in}$   $E = 28 \times 10^{6} \text{ lb} \cdot \text{in}^{2}$   $I'_{B} = \frac{1}{6144} \text{ in}^{4}$ 

For these values, Equation (17) gives the first two values of  $\beta$ L being 1.345 and 4.071. Using this, Equation (16) gives the first two natural frequencies as being 37.28 and 341.7 rad/sec.

A model MB 303 accelerometer was mounted 1" below the damper assembly. The accelerometer signal was amplified using a model 2614B amplifier powered by an Endevco Mode 2621 power supply; this signal was then recorded using a Honeywell Model 2106 visicorder. High frequency noise required sending the amplified signal through a simple low pass filter before it reached the visicorder. Details of this filter are given in Appendix C.

# IV. <u>Correlation of Analytical and</u> Laboratory Results

This chapter compares the computed motion of the free vibration impact damper to the motion measured in the laboratory. Possible sources of errors in both laboratory measurements and in the attempt to preduct the motion of a real system using LABSIM and the equations of Chapter III are discussed.

The program LABSIM, explained in Chapter II, was used with the measured physical quantities of the laboratory free vibration model, given in Chapter III. Table 1 compares values of s and  $\boldsymbol{\theta}_m$  obtained from LABSIM for e = 0.4 and 0.5 with the measured laboratory values of s and  $\theta_{m_{int}}$  for the different gap settings and impacting masses. 0.4 and 0.5 were the minimum and maximum values measured for the coefficient of restitution e. As can be seen the measured value of damper efficiency s is never more than 14 percent greater than the largest value of s computed, or 5 percent less than the smallest value computed. However, the measured s is not consistent in falling between, above, or below the computed values of s. The measured value of  $\boldsymbol{\theta}_{m_{\underline{u}}}$  may be more than twice the nearest computed value. The rest of this chapter considers possible reasons for these imperfect correlations.

## TABLE 1

	<u></u>	Computer				Laboratory	
mass (slugs)		e = 0.4		e = 0.5			
	d	S	θ <sub>m</sub> r	s	<sup>θ</sup> mr	S	θ <sub>m</sub> r
0.000481	3.53"	0.0115		0.0102	0.0107	0.0113	0.010
0.00149	1.312"	0.0134	0.0040	0.0110	0.0032	0.0152	0.0082
	2.312"	0.0199	0.0071	0.0176	0.0048	0.021	0.0137
	3.312"	0.027	0.0105	0.023	0.0075	0.028	0.0184
0.00503	0.969"	0.029		0.025	0.0016	0.024	0.0042
	1.969"	0.043	0.0033	0.037	0.0033	0.038	0.0063
	2.969"	0.061	0.0057	0.052	0.0026	0.056	0.0130

# COMPARISON OF COMPUTER SIMULATION AND LABORATORY RESULTS FOR s and $\boldsymbol{\theta}_{m_r}$

## Notes

<u>\_\_\_</u>\_\_

57

s measured in radians/sec.

 $\theta_{m_r}$  measured in radians.

The actual distances between impacting surfaces in the laboratory were set at 2", 3", and 4"; the values given here for the gap d are these distances minus the impacting mass's diameter.

Sources of errors in obtaining the laboratory results fall into two categories: (1) errors in measuring the physical parameters of the system, and (2) errors in measuring the resulting output. Of the physical parameters measured, c and  $c_m$  are the most uncertain, for the reasons discussed in Chapter III. In measuring the mass of the impacting masses, the 0.00005 slug mass of the line supporting them was neglected. This certainly increased the effective mass of the impacting masses by some small amount. Measured lengths under six inches could have up to 1/32" error in them, measured lengths over six feet could have up to one inch error in them. In calculating I, the distributed mass of the damper assembly was modeled as a point mass 26" from the rotation point. These are only some of the error sources, most of which can be assumed to be small. With the exception of c,  $c_m$ , and e, a qualitative estimate of the errors in the values of the physical parameters given in Chapter III would be that errors are ±5 percent of the quantities given, or less.

Some of the error sources involved in measuring the results of a laboratory test are simple: the strain gage used was accurate to within ±2 percent, while the traveling microscope used in measuring the photographed oscilloscope trace had a small amount of play in the adjustment, causing errors of approximately 0.1 percent or less. Human judgement provided another error source;

in particular, in measuring the photographed oscilloscope trace one had to decide where to take a measurement from on an often fuzzy trace edge. A qualitative estimate of the errors in measuring s and  $\theta_{m_r}$  is that the smallest values of s and  $\theta_{m_r}$  may be in error by as much as ±20%, with most values of s and  $\theta_{m_r}$  being accurate to within ±5% or less.

The computer model of the impact damper, LABSIM, gives the correct values for s and  $\theta_{m_r}$  for the numbers it is given and the operations it performs. Errors caused by limitations in the accuracy of single precision FORTRAN would be insignificant (less than 1 percent error) for the numbers and operations employed. The only reason LABSIM would not give the motion of the laboratory model of the free vibration impact damper would be if the equations of motion, or their solutions, for this system are in error.

The equations of motion of the primary system (Equation 2) and the impacting mass (Equation 6) employed in LABSIM are based upon the assumption that restoring moments and forces ( $k\theta$  and  $k_m x$ ) are proportional to displacement, and damping moments and forces ( $c\theta$  and  $c_m \dot{x}$ ) are proportional to velocities. It is commonly accepted that spring forces on a body and gravity forces on a pendulum restricted to small displacements are both approximately proportional to displacement. Damping forces are not as well understood, and resistance to motion is often assumed to be independent of all but the direction of

motion (dry friction) or to be proportional to velocity squared (aerodynamic drag). Thus, the assumed damping forces in Equations (2) and (6) may differ from the actual damping of the laboratory model.

A certain source of error in the attempt to model a real system using LABSIM lies in the small angle approximations made in the derivation of Equations (2) and (6). Other differences between the LABSIM model and reality are the assumption that impacts are of infinitely short duration, or that an impact occurs whenever an iteration puts the impacting mass within 0.000001 feet of a stop. Finally, it is unlikely that Equations (2) and (6) take into account all of the forces acting upon the primary system and the impacting mass. It would be very difficult to quantify all of these sources of error, or to say if these errors add up or cancel out over many cycles.

In view of the errors mentioned, the agreement between the computed and measured values of s seems acceptable. Which of these errors causes the differences between the computed and measured values of  $\theta_{m_r}$  is unknown. While LABSIM does a poor job of predicting  $\theta_{m_r}$ , it is reasonable to assume that the errors in LABSIM do not significantly favor one set of system parameters over another. Therefore, for an impact damper with equations of motion similar to Equations (2) and (6), LABSIM should be able to predict

how changes in system parameters will affect s and  $\theta_{m_{r}}$  , even if it does not reach a correct actual value of

<sup>θ</sup>m<sub>r</sub>.

Ð,

#### V. Results and Discussion

#### Free Vibration

All of the results discussed here were obtained by using the computer model of the impact damper IDEAL, the model with no gravity or viscous damping. The system modeled had the parameters:

> $\theta_{m_0}$  = initial amplitude = 0.10 radian; I = moment of inertia = 0.1893 slug · ft<sup>2</sup>; L = impact moment arm = 2.23 ft; d = gap setting = 0.25 ft; m = impact mass = 0.001 slug; e = coefficient of restitution = 0.5; and  $\omega_n$  = natural frequency = 25 radians/sec.

The parameters  $\theta_{m_0}$  and I were kept constant, as was the flex - plate stiffness; all of the other parameters were varied one at a time. The effect that changes in the last five parameters had on the damper efficiency, s, and the residual amplitude,  $\theta_{m_e}$  are shown graphically.

Figure 9, which plots damper efficiency s for different impact moment arms L, was made by varying L from 1 ft to 3-1/4 ft, in quarter foot increments, while holding all other parameters at the values given in the preceding paragraph. Figure 10, which gives s versus d, was obtained





similarly, by varying the gap setting d from 1 inch to 4 inches in quarter inch increments, while all other parameters were held constant. The same technique was used in obtaining Figure 11, s versus coefficient of restitution e, and Figure 12, s versus the natural frequency  $\omega_n$ . The data for Figure 13 was obtained in the same manner as for the parameters of Figures 9 to 12, but the plot was made a little different. It was found that the damper efficiency s is approximately proportional to the quantity:

$$\frac{m}{1 + mL^2}$$

The data for Figure 13 was obtained by varying m from 0.001 slug to 0.005 slug in increments of 0.005 slug. The impact moment arm L was kept at 2.23 ft and the moment of inertia I was kept at 0.1893 slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup>.

The approximate linearity of Figures 9, 10, 12, and 13 and the linearity of Figure 11 for  $e \ge 0.3$  make the analysis of s a simple matter. Since s appears to be directly proportional to the impact moment arm L, the gap, d, one minus the coefficient of restitution, 1 - e (for e greater than or equal to 0.3), the natural frequency  $\omega_n$ , and the mass over the total inertia,  $m/(I+mL^2)$ , the following relation can be written for e greater than or equal to 0.3:

$$\mathbf{s} = \mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{s}} \left[ \frac{\mathrm{mLd}(1-\mathrm{e})}{\mathrm{I}+\mathrm{mL}^2} \right] \omega_{\mathrm{n}}$$
(23)



-





It is interesting to point out that the damper efficiency improves as the coefficient of restitution e decreases, even for e less than 0.3, as Figure 11 shows. This is not surprising, since low coefficients of restitution result in a greater energy loss. However, according to References (7), (8), (10), (16), and (20), for an impact damper used in forced vibration, optimal damper efficiency results by choosing e as close to unity as possible. The difference between the two systems is that for the forced vibration in steady state motion, the forcing function must provide a constant energy input equal to the energy loss, through impact or any other mechanism. In free vibration, the system starts with a certain total energy and any energy lost is not restored. This reduces the possible motion. This illustrates the fact that parameters given in the literature which optimize the impact damper's performance in forced vibration do not, in general, optimize the impact damper's performance in free vibration.

A useful feature of Equation (23) is that the term in brackets is dimensionless. This requires that  $c_s$  be dimensionless. If both s and  $\omega_n$  are measured in radians per second, the solution of Equation (23) for  $c_s$ , taken as the average solution for  $c_s$  over the full range of parameter variations, is:

$$0.33 = \frac{s(1+mL^2)}{mLd(1-e)\omega_n}$$
(24)

Stated another way, the damper efficiency s is related to its parameters by the relation:

$$s = 0.33 \frac{mLd(1-e)\omega_n}{1+mL^2}$$
 (25)

This relation is only good for  $e \ge 0.3$ , and may not apply for parameters outside the range of those used here to obtain Equation (25). Within these constraints, Equation (25) should allow one to choose a damper efficiency s.

Figures 14 through 18 are plots of  $\theta_{m_r}$  versus L, d, e,  $\omega_n$ , and m/(I+mL<sup>2</sup>), obtained in the same manner as Figures 5 through 9. These graphs illustrate that the relationship of the residual amplitude  $\theta_{m_r}$  to the parameters varied is complicated. Attempts were made to solve for  $\theta_{m_r}$  as a function of L/d, but these results were considerably more erratic than those of Figure 14, where L is varied and d kept constant; and Figure 15, where d is varied and L kept constant.

By plotting the results given in Figure 14 on logarithmic graph paper (also called log-log graph paper), the graph of Figure 19 was obtained. This graph implies that  $\theta_{m_r}$  can be approximated as:













í -





Fig. 19. Residual amplitude for Different Values of the Impact Moment Arm on a Base 10 Logarithmic Scale. m = 0.001 slug, I = 0.1893 slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup>, d = 3", e = 0.5, and  $\omega_n = 25$  rad/sec
$$\theta_{m_r} = c_1 + c_2 \left(\frac{L}{1 \text{ ft}}\right)^{-1.35}$$

where L, measured in feet, is divided by one foot to nondimensionalize it. If we assume that as L approaches infinity,  $\theta_{m_r}$  approaches zero, or some negligible value, this relation becomes:

$$\theta_{m_{r}} = 0.022 \left(\frac{L}{1 \text{ ft}}\right)^{-1.35}$$
(26)

It is emphasized here that this is an approximation to a function that is not well understood, and this approximation is obviously invalid for small values of L.

Figure 15 shows that, with the exception of one data point,  $\theta_m$  is almost exactly linear in the gap d. This one bad data point can easily be explained. The amplitude where the impact damper ceases to function was not always precisely defined in the computer simulation. In many cases there was a sharp transition from where the amplitude declined linearly to where the damping action ceased. However, in some cases the damper transition from effective to ineffective operation took place over one or two cycles, making the determination of  $\theta_{\pi}$ something of a judgement call. For this reason, occasional variations from what appears to be an otherwise well-defined trend can In the case of  $\theta_{m_{u}}$  versus d, it can be be expected.

stated with confidence that  $\boldsymbol{\theta}_{m_{in}}$  is linear in d.

Figure 16, which is a graph of residual amplitude  $\theta_{m_r}$  versus coefficient of restitution e, clearly shows that a high value of e is useful in minimizing  $\theta_m$ . Unfortunately, a low value of e is desired to maximize damper efficiency s. A quadratic function was fit to the points of Figure 16, using the least squares method to minimize errors. This quadratic function is:

$$\theta_{m_r}$$
 (e) = 0.02679 - 0.05132e + 0.0248e<sup>2</sup> (27)

This curve comes very close to all of the points plotted, but it is only an approximation to an unknown function relating  $\theta_{m_r}$  to e.

The plot of  $\theta_{m_r}$  versus natural frequency  $\omega_n$ , shown in Figure 17, shows  $\theta_{m_r}$  to be unaffected by  $\omega_n$ . By examining the equations of Appendix A upon which the computer simulation is based, it is seen that an increase in  $\omega_n$  causes a proportional increase in the rate at which the system operates, but does not otherwise affect how it operates. Therefore, it is logical that damper efficiency s would be proportional to  $\omega_n$ , but that  $\theta_{m_r}$  would be unaffected by  $\omega_n$ .

In evaluating Figure 18, the plot of  $\theta_{m_r}$  versus  $m_r$ m/(I+mL<sup>2</sup>), it is difficult to envision what occurs as m becomes very large, driving m/(I+mL<sup>2</sup>) to the value of  $1/L^2$ . In the range of masses varied  $\theta_{m_r}$  does not change as dramatically as it did when L, d and e were varied. Also, Figure 18 does not suggest a function with which to approximate the  $\theta_{m_r}$  dependence on m/(I+mL<sup>2</sup>). For these reasons, it is noted that there is some dependence of  $\theta_{m_r}$  upon m/(I+mL<sup>2</sup>), but no approximate relationship is given.

Putting together the results of Equations (26) and (27), and using the linearity of  $\theta_{m_r}$  in d, the residual amplitude can be related to these parameters with:

$$\theta_{m_{r}} = C_{\theta} \left[ \frac{(1 - 1.914e + 0.925e^{2})d}{(L/1 \text{ ft})^{1.35}} \right]$$
(28)

For Equation (28) to be in radians,  $C_{\theta}$  must have the dimension of 1/ft. This relation is approximate, and totally neglects  $\theta_{m_r}$ 's dependence upon m. Solving for  $C_{\theta}$  for a variety of values of e, d, and L, with L and d measured in feet, the average value of  $C_{\theta}$  is  $C_{\theta} = 0.33$  /ft. This given value varied by - 25 percent to +15 percent when calculating it for varied L. This emphasizes that the following relationship gives a very approximate value for  $\theta_m$ :

$$\theta_{m_{r}} = \frac{0.33}{ft} \left[ \frac{(1 - 1.914e + 0.925e^{2})d}{(L/1 ft)^{1.35}} \right]$$
(29)

Equation (29) is only approximately valid for the range of L, d, and e varied, with m = 0.001 slug. The approximation becomes more uncertain as m is varied, and using a

different value for m probably warrants a recalculation of  $C_{\theta}$ .  $C_{\theta}$  is also only correct if L and d are measured in feet, though it could easily be recalculated for other units.

# Forced Vibration

The motion of the beam in forced vibration was measured with an acclerometer mounted just below the damper assembly. The output of the accelerometer had to have high frequency noise filtered out before the visicorder trace of this output would become readable. This noise was serious encugh to drown out the sinusoidal signal expected when the beam was excited without the impact damper. The noise problem was even more serious when the impact damper was in place. Presumably, the accelerometer was picking up the high frequency beam vibrations that caused acoustical noise.

A hand tracing of the filtered accelerometer output is shown in Figure 20, for the motion without the impacting mass, and in Figure 21, for the motion with a 0.00149 slug impacting mass and a total gap of two inches. The actual visicorder traces are given in Appendix B. Figure 21 suggests that there is no simple steady-state motion present. This suspicion was confirmed by the sound of the irregularly occurring impacts. Other than this, the visicorder traces were of little use in a quantitative analysis of the forced system.





Simply observing and listening to the forced system with the damper operating gave some valuable information. The motion of the system was not enough to initiate and sustain impacts unless the system was forced near its first resonant frequency, or unless the gap setting was very small. Higher resonant frequencies caused very low amplitude vibrations. No attempt was made to judge the damper's effectiveness at these resonant frequencies.

At frequencies near the first resonance and gaps greater than one inch the 0.00149 slug mass did reduce the amplitude of the system by a factor of at least two, but it did not approach any detectable steady state operation. For very small gap settings there was a possible steady state reached, but no detectable reduction in amplitude. Using the 0.00503 slug mass at any gap large enough for it to affect the motion of the system led to a very erratic motion of the system with no evident steady state operating state, and no significant sustained reduction in amplitude.

#### VI. Conclusions and Recommendations

The impact damper shows considerable potential in reducing the free vibration of long, lightly damped structures. It is especially promising for long structures since the effectiveness of the damper increases, and the amplitude at which the damper becomes ineffective decreases, as the damper is moved farther from the rotation point. For a coefficient of restitution of 0.3 or greater, Equation (24) gives a good estimate of the rate at which the oscillations will be reduced, while Equation (29) gives an estimate of the amplitude where the damper becomes ineffective. Even in the ineffective region, where impacts occur sporadically, each impact converts some of the kinetic energy of the system to heat, so only after all impacts cease does the damper become totally ineffective.

A problem with the impact damper is the impacting mass's need for room to travel and stops to impact against. If this cannot be designed into or added onto the structure, without an unacceptable gain in weight or loss of structural strength, the impact damper should not be used. If structural strength is a problem, using a damper with a very low coefficient of restitution might be a solution. While Equation (6) does not hold for e less than 0.3,

Figure 11 indicates that damper efficiency would still be higher than for any e greater than 0.3. However, Figure 16 indicates that the residual amplitude also will be high.

The residual amplitude of the damper can be eliminated using other damping techniques, or, to generalize an idea proposed in Reference (23), by putting two dampers in parallel. One damper would be designed to quickly reduce large amplitude oscillations, while the other would continue to reduce oscillations to a smaller value at a slower rate after the fast damper became ineffective. Another possibility is a system which reduces the gap as the amplitude of the primary system decreases. Maximum damper efficiency could be obtained keeping the gap as large as possible without the damper becoming ineffective; i.e., keep the gap just small enough so impacts are sustained.

Another potentially useful variation on the basic design of the impact damper would be to let the impacting mass travel in two or three dimensions, impacting against a ring or sphere enclosing it. This could be of use in damping out oscillations about more than one axis. This same problem could be attacked by orienting one-dimensional impact dampers along all possible rotation planes, but this could get into weight problems.

Other variations on the impact damper in free vibration would be to replace the impacting mass with many masses or a liquid. Or, the hard stops could be replaced

by springs or dashpots. Many of these variations have been studied for the impact damper in forced vibration, but, as has been noted, what maximizes the efficiency of the forced damper does not necessarily maximize the efficiency of the free damper. The basic system studied here shows enough potential to warrant further study.

With the exception of Reference (5), all references on the subject agreed that the impact damper shows great promise in eliminating forced vibrations. (Reference (5) studied impact dampers solely for the purpose of eliminating vibrations in ship's hulls.) The results of this study shows that the impact damper can provide some damping of structures in forced vibration near resonance. However, this damping was sensitive to system parameters, and no steady-state motion was found.

The forced motion of the impact damper needs further study, not only to resolve differences in theories, but also in the laboratory. Laboratory models should be designed not only with the objective of simulating structures of interest, but also with knowledge of the limits of measuring equipment. Many instruments are poorly equipped to handle vibrations of 30 to 35 radians per second.

In summary, the impact damper did not show itself to be effective or predictable in reducing or eliminating force vibrations. However, the impact damper was both

effective and predictable in reducing the free vibration of a structure to a certain value. A comparatively small mass can greatly reduce the amplitude of a much larger vibrating structure, in many cases only taking a few cycles to do so. The impact damper's results in reducing free vibrations not only warrants further study, but also warrants careful, cautious consideration for use in current, applicable vibration problems.

# Bibliography

- Paget, A. L. "Vibration in Stream-Turbine Buckets and Damping by Impact," <u>Engineering</u>, pp. 305-307 (March 19, 1937).
- Lieber, P. and P. P. Jensen. "An Acceleration Damper: Development, Design, and Some Applications," <u>Trans. ASME</u>, Vol. 67, pp. 523-530 (1945).
- 3. Grubin, C. and P. Lieber. <u>A Comparative Study Between</u> an Exact and an Approximate Theory of the Accleration <u>Damper</u>. Contract No. N6ONR26316, Project No. NR-035-377. Polytechnic Institute of Brooklyn, Brooklyn, N.Y., July 1951 (PIBAL No. 186).
- 4. Grubin, C. and P. Lieber. <u>A Theory of the Acceleration</u> <u>Damper Leading to a Rational Design Procedure</u>. Contract No. NONR-591(00) and NONR-591(01). Department of Aeronautical Engineering, Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, N.Y., March 15, 1952.
- 5. McGoldrick, R. T. <u>Experiments with an Impact Vibra-</u> <u>tion Damper</u>. Report 816. Navy Department, the David W. Taylor Model Basin, May 1952 (NS 712-100).
- 6. Grubin, C. and P. Lieber. <u>Further Considerations on</u> <u>the Theory of the Acceleration Damper</u>. Contract No. <u>591(00)-591(01)</u>. Department of Aeronautical Engineering, Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, N.Y., June 1, 1954 (AD 27389).
- 7. Lieber, P. and R. Duffy. <u>A Study of the Acceleration</u> <u>Damper Based upon an Exact Theory and the Electric</u> <u>Analog</u>. Contract No. NONR-591(00)-591(01). Department of Aeronautical Engineering, Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, Troy, N.Y., December 30, 1954 (AD 55831).
- Feygin, M. I. <u>Contribution to the Theory of Nonlinear</u> <u>Dampers</u>, News of the Universities--Radiophysics), 2, 6, 7, 1959.
- 9. Masri, S. F. <u>Analytical and Experimental Studies of</u> <u>Impact Dampers</u>. Ph.D. Dissertation. California Institute of Technology, Pasadena, California, 1965.

- 10. Masri, S. F. "General Motion of Impact Dampers," <u>The Journal of the Acoustical Society of America</u>, Vol. 47, No. 1 (Part 2), pp. 229-237 (1970).
- 11. Sadek, M. M. "The Behaviour of the Impact Damper," <u>Proc. Inst. Mech. Eng. 1980</u>, Part 1, No. 38, pp. 895-906 (1965-1966).
- 12. Sadek, M. M. and B. Mills. "Effect of Gravity on the Performance of an Impact Damper: Part 1. Steady-State Motion," Journal Mechanical Engineering Science, Vol. 12, No. 4, pp. 268-277 (1970).
- 13. Sadek, M. M. and C. J. H. Williams. "Effect of Gravity on the Performance of an Impact Damper: Part 2. Stability of Vibrational Modes," <u>Journal of Mechanical</u> Engineering Science, Vol. 12, No. 4, pp. 278-287 (1970).
- 14. Sadek, M. M. and M. D. Thomas. "The Effectiveness of the Impact Damper with a Spring-Supported Auxiliary Mass," Journal Mechanical Engineering Science, Vol. 16, No. 2, pp. 109-116 (1974).
- 15. Roy, R. K., R. D. Rocke, and J. E. Foster. "The Application of Impact Dampers to Continuous Systems," Journal of Engineering for Industry, Transacticus of the ASME, pp. 1317-1324 (November 1975).
- 16. Dokair.ish, M. A. and H. Elmaraghy. "Optimum Design Parameters for Impact Damper," ASME publication 73-Det-61. Manuscript received June 5, 1973.
- 17. Yamada, G. "Vibration Damping Effect of the Impact Damper on a Piecewise Linear Mass Spring System," <u>Bulletin of the JSME</u>, Vol. 17, No. 104, pp. 210-217 (February 1974).
- 18. Sadek, M. M. and B. Mills. "The Application of Impact Damper to the Control of Machine Tool Chatter," <u>Proc.</u> <u>M.T.D.R. Conf.</u>, 211. Pergamon Press, Oxford, pp. 243-257 (1966).
- 19. Kaper, H. G. "The Behaviour of a Mass-Spring System Provided with a Discontinuous Dynamic Vibration Absorber," <u>Applied Scientific Research</u>, Section A, Vol. 10, pp. 369-383 (1961).
- 20. Egle, D. M. "An Investigation of an Impact Vibration Absorber," Journal of Engineering for Industry, Transactions of the ASME, Series B, Vol. 89, pp. 653-661 (1967).

- 21. Arnold, R. N. "Response of an Impact Vibration Absorber to Forced Vibration," <u>9th Congrès Inter-</u> <u>national Méchanique Appliquée</u>, University of Brussels, Vol. 7, pp. 407-418 (1957).
- 22. Dittrich, H. "Untersuchungen über einen unstetig arbeitenden Stob-Schwingungsdämpfer," <u>Ingenieur-</u> <u>Archiv</u>, Vol. 35, pp. 150-171 (1966).
- 23. Yasuda, K. and M. Toyoda. "The Damping Effect of the Impact Damper," <u>Bulletin of the JSME</u>, Vol. 21, No. 153, pp. 424-430 (March 1978).
- 24. <u>Marks' Standard Handbook for Mechanical Engineers</u>, Theodore Baumeister, Editor-in-Chief. (8th Edition). New York: McGraw-Hill Book Company.
- Volterra, E. and Charles Zachmanoglou. <u>Dynamics of</u> <u>Vibrations</u>. Columbus: Charles E. Merril Books, Inc., 1965.
- 26. Byars, Edward F. and Robert D. Snyder. <u>Engineering</u> <u>Mechanics of Deformable Bodies</u> (Third Edition). New York: Harper & Row Publishers, 1975.
- 27. Beer, Ferdinand F. and E. Russel Johnston. <u>Mechanics</u> for Engineers: Statics and Dynamics (Third Edition). New York: McGraw-Hill, Inc., 1976.

6)

#### Appendix A

#### Derivation of Equations

## Introduction

The equations of motion and their solutions for the free vibration of a simple one degree of freedom system are well known. The laboratory model, depicted in Figure 22, used to study the affect of the impact damper on free vibration is described by, for the period between impacts, the equations of motion solved for later in this appendix. The model depicted in Figure 23 is a continuous system equivalent to a flexible beam with a lumped mass attached to one end. The free vibration of this type of structure was solved in Reference (25), and is given in Chapter II of this thesis. These solutions can be evaluated if the position and velocity of the system are known for some specified time t, and are used in the computer models of impact dampers in Appendix C.

# Position and Velocity Relations

It is assumed that an impact can be modeled as being of infinitely short duration. During this kind of impact, for the system of Figure 24, the position  $\theta(t)$ of the beam, and x(t) of the impacting mass remain unchanged,







while their velocities are changed instantaneously from  $\dot{\theta}(t_i^{(-)})$  and  $\dot{x}(t_i^{(-)})$  to  $\dot{\theta}(t_i^{(+)})$  and  $\dot{x}(t_i^{(+)})$ . While an actual impact is of finite duration, this time is so small compared to the periods of the beam and suspended mass that this assumption is justified. This causes half of the initial conditions to fall out immediately.

$$x(t_{i}^{(+)}) = x(t_{i}^{(-)})$$
$$\theta(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \theta(t_{i}^{(-)})$$

The remaining two initial conditions can be obtained by the conservation of angular momentum and the velocity condition:

$$e(\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)}) - \dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})L) = \dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)})L - \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})$$
  
(30)

Conservation of angular momentum requires that in the absence of external torques the total angular momentum of a system about a fixed point 0 remains constant. There are external torques on this system, so the magnitude of the total angular momentum about point 0 is time dependent, or:

$$H_0 = H_0(t)$$

However, for an impact of infinitely short duration, there is only a momentum exchange within the total system, so:

$$H_0(t_i^{(-)}) = H_0(t_i^{(+)})$$
 (31)

It is convenient to take the fixed point 0 to be the point about which the beam rotates. This point is approximately fixed for small angular deflections  $\theta$ . This will be shown to be true when the motion of the beam is solved later in this appendix. Strictly speaking, if the suspended mass is taken to be a point mass, then the magnitude of its angular momentum about 0 is:

$$H_{0m} = |\overline{r}_{0m} \times m\overline{V}_{m}|$$
 (32)

where  $\overline{r}_{0m}$  is the vector from point 0 to the mass, and  $\overline{V}_m$ is the vector velocity of the mass. Both  $\overline{r}_{0m}$  and  $\overline{V}_m$  vary with the angular deflection  $\alpha$  of the mass, but if  $\alpha$  is kept small, then  $\overline{r}_{0m}$  and  $\overline{V}_m$  are approximately perpendicular. For an infinitely short impact,  $\overline{r}_{0m}$  will remain constant in magnitude, so:

$$H_{0m} = mV_m r_{0m}$$
(33)

Two further useful substitutions are obtained by noting that for small  $\alpha$ 's, the vector  $\overline{v}_m$  is essentially aligned with the x axis, and the value of  $r_{0m}$  is essentially constant; so, writing:

$$v_m \stackrel{\cdot}{=} x(t)$$

and

the angular momentum of the mass becomes:

$$H_{0m} = mx(t)L$$
(34)

The substitution for  $r_{Om}$  was made to make later equations more readable.

The magnitude of the angular momentum about point 0 of a beam with moment of inertia I is simply:

$$H_{0b} = I\theta(t)$$
 (35)

Conserving angular momentum across impact i results in:

$$I\hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)}) + mx(t_{i}^{(-)})L = I\hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)}) + mx(t_{i}^{(+)})L$$
(36)

The velocity relations can be rewritten as:

$$\hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \frac{1}{L} \{ x(t_{i}^{(+)}) + e[x(t_{i}^{(-)}) - \hat{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})L] \}$$
(37)

and

$$\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)})L - e[\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)}) - \dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})L]$$
(38)

Using the Equation (37) in Equation (36) and rearranging gives:

$$\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \frac{L}{I+mL^{2}} [\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})I(1+e) + \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)})(mL - \frac{Ie}{L})]$$
(39)

Similarly, using Equation (38) in Equation (36) gives:

$$\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \frac{1}{1+mL^{2}} [\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(-)})(1 - mL^{2}e) + \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(-)})mL(1+e)]$$
(40)

These relations, along with:

$$\theta(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \theta(t_{i}^{(-)})$$
(41)

$$x(t_{i}^{(+)}) = x(t_{i}^{(-)})$$
 (42)

give the initial conditions for the motion between impacts
i and i+l in terms of the final conditions between i-l and i.

# Motion of the Vibrating Beam

The equation of motion for a rigid beam rotating about a fixed point 0 can be obtained from the relation:

$$\Sigma$$
 Moments = I $\theta$  (43)

The beam in question is suspended by a flex plate of length  $d_s$ , shown in Figure 25. This spring can be said to apply a moment of magnitude M at the top of the beam. This moment can be obtained from an angle  $\theta$  from the rest (undeformed) position of the spring steel using the relation:



$$\frac{d^2 x}{d y^2} = \frac{d\theta}{d y} = \frac{M(y)}{EI'}$$
(44)

where M(y) is the moment of distance y along the spring, and the x and y coordinates have been reversed from Reference (26). This equation assumes small angles  $\theta$ , and so assumes small deflection in the x direction of the beam.

The free body diagram shown in Figure 25 shows that the beam moment is approximately independent of y, so integrating Equation (44) once gives:

$$\theta(\mathbf{y}) = \frac{M\mathbf{y}}{E\mathbf{I}_{s}}$$
(45)

and integrating once again gives:

$$\mathbf{x}(\mathbf{y}) = \frac{1}{2} \frac{M \mathbf{y}^2}{E \mathbf{I}_s}$$
(46)

At  $y = d_s$ ,  $\theta(y)$  is the angular displacement of the primary system. Evaluating  $\theta$  and x at  $y = d_s$  gives:

$$\theta (d_s) = \frac{Md_s}{EI_s}, \qquad (47)$$

$$x(d_s) = \frac{1}{2} \frac{Md_s^2}{EI_s'} = \frac{1}{2} \theta d_s$$
 (48)

If the aluminum beam oscillates about a fixed point 0 a distance  $r_s$  from the top of the beam, then for small values of  $\theta$ :

$$r_{s} \theta \approx r_{s}(\sin \theta) = x(d_{s}) = \frac{1}{2} \theta d_{s}$$
 (49)

so  $r_s = \frac{1}{2}d_s$ , and the beam rotates about a point located at the center of the spring's undeformed position.

The moment  $M_s$  applied to the beam by the spring is opposite in sign to the moment at the end of the spring. Using Equation (47), this gives:

$$M_{s} = \frac{EI_{s}'\theta(d_{s})}{d_{s}} = -\frac{EI_{s}'\theta}{d_{s}}$$
(50)

 $\theta = \theta(d_s)$  is the deflection from vertical of the beam. Gravity also causes a moment  $M_{\alpha}$ :

$$M_{g} = -W_{T} r_{c.g.} \sin \theta = -W_{T} r_{c.g} \theta$$
 (51)

where  $W_T$  is the tot 1 weight of the primary system, and  $r_{c.g}$  is the distance from the center of gravity of the primary system to the rotation point 0. Also, there is a moment due to damping that resists the motion of the system. This damping moment  $M_d$  is assumed to be proportional to the angular velocity, so it can be defined as:

$$M_{d} = c\theta$$
 (52)

The equation of motion of the system then becomes:

$$\mathbf{i}\theta = -\mathbf{c}\theta - \mathbf{W}_{T}\mathbf{r}_{c.g}\theta - \frac{\mathbf{EI}_{s}^{'}\theta}{\mathbf{d}_{s}}$$
(53)

or:

$$\ddot{I}\theta + c\theta + k\theta = 0$$
 (54)

where

$$k = W_{T} r_{c.g.} + \frac{EI'_{s}}{d_{s}}$$
(55)

By Reference (27), the solution to  $\theta(t)$  can be written:

$$\theta(t) = e^{\left(-\frac{c}{2I}t\right)}$$
 (A sin qt + B cos qt)

where A and B are constants depending on initial conditions, and:

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{k}{I} - \left(\frac{c}{2I}\right)^2}$$
(56)

Since we are interested in the motion of the system between impact i at time t<sub>i</sub> and impact i+1 at time t<sub>i+1</sub>, the solution is more conveniently written in terms of time  $t=t_i+\Delta t$ where  $\Delta t$  ranges from 0 to  $t_{i+1}-t_i$ . In this case:

$$\theta(\Delta t) = e^{\left(-\frac{C}{2I}\Delta t\right)}$$
 (A sin q $\Delta t$  + B cos q $\Delta t$ ) (57)

If the angular position and velocity of the primary system and the velocity of the impacting mass are known immediately before impact i at time  $t_i^{(-)}$ , then  $\theta(t_i^{(+)})$  and  $\dot{\theta}(t_i^{(+)})$  are given by Equations (40) and (41).

Using these, the constants A and B can be solved, and the position and velocity of the system at time  $\Delta t$  as  $\Delta t$  ranges from t<sub>i</sub> to t<sub>i+1</sub> is:

AD-A135	695	THE (U) SCH	THE USEFULNESS OF IMPACT DAMPERS FOR SPACE APPLICATIONS 2/2 . (U) AIR FORCE INS OF TECH WRIGHT-PATTERSON AFB OH School of Engineering B W Gibson Mar 83										2	
UNCLASSIFIED		AF I	AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2							F/G 20/11		NL		
											END FRATD			
			•											
													•	
	<u> </u>		<b>.</b>	_		_							a second	



der.

۱ :

MICROCOPY RESOLUTION TEST CHART NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS-1963-A

$$\theta (\Delta t) = e^{\left(-\frac{c}{2I} \Delta t\right)} \left[ \left( \frac{\dot{\theta} (t_{i}^{(+)})}{q} + \frac{\theta (t_{i}^{(+)})c}{2Iq} \right) \sin q\Delta t + \theta (t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q\Delta t \right]$$
(58)

$$\dot{\theta} (\Delta t) = \left(-\frac{c}{2I}\right) e^{\left(-\frac{c}{2I}\Delta t\right)} \left[ \left(\frac{\dot{\theta} (t_{i}^{(+)})}{q} + \frac{\theta (t_{i}^{(+)})c}{2Iq}\right) \sin q\Delta t + \theta (t_{i}^{(+)})c \cos q\Delta t \right] + e^{\left(-\frac{c}{2I}\Delta t\right)} \left[ \left(\dot{\theta} (t_{i}^{(+)}) + \frac{\theta (t_{i}^{(+)})c}{2I}\right) \cos q\Delta t - q\theta (t_{i}^{(-)}) \sin q\Delta t \right] - q\theta (t_{i}^{(-)}) \sin q\Delta t \right]$$
(59)

If the system is undamped these equations become:

$$\theta(\Delta t) = \frac{\dot{\theta}(t_{i}^{(+)})}{q} \sin q\Delta t + \theta(t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q\Delta t \quad (60)$$

$$\theta(\Delta t) = \theta(t_i^{(+)}) \cos q\Delta t - q\theta(t_i^{(+)}) \sin q\Delta t$$
 (61)

# Motion of the Secondary System

.

The motion of the secondary system, which in the laboratory was simply a steel sphere suspended by nylon thread, is most easily obtained by:

$$\Sigma$$
 Moments =  $I_{m}^{\alpha}$  (62)

In this case, the inertia  $I_m$  is simply:

$$I_{m} = mL_{m}^{2}$$
(63)

The only moments are from the  $\alpha$  component of gravity:

$$\mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{g}} = -\mathbf{m}\mathbf{g}\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}} \sin \alpha \cong -\mathbf{m}\mathbf{g}\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}}^{\alpha}$$
(64)

and the moment due to damping:

$$M_{d} = -c_{\alpha}^{2} \alpha \tag{65}$$

so:

$$mL_{m}^{2}\ddot{\alpha} = -c_{\alpha}\dot{\alpha} - mgL_{m}\alpha \qquad (66)$$

In order to conveniently go from treating the mass as a damped pendulum to treating the mass as being free from all forces except the impacts, it is helpful to note that:

$$\mathbf{x} = \mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}} \sin_{\alpha} \stackrel{\simeq}{=} \mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}}^{\alpha}$$
(67)

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = \alpha \mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}} \cos \alpha \tilde{=} \alpha \mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}}$$
(68)

$$\ddot{\mathbf{x}} = \alpha \mathbf{L}_{m} \cos \alpha - \alpha^{2} \mathbf{L}_{m} \sin \alpha \approx \alpha \mathbf{L}_{m}$$
(69)

This implies that for small values of  $\alpha$ , little accuracy is lost by assuming all motion is in the x direction, so Equation (66) can be written:

$$\mathbf{mL}_{\mathbf{m}}^{\mathbf{x}} = -\mathbf{c}_{\alpha} \frac{\mathbf{x}}{\mathbf{L}_{\mathbf{m}}} - \mathbf{mgx}$$

n

or

$$\frac{1}{2} \mathbf{x} + \mathbf{c}_{m} \mathbf{x} + \mathbf{k}_{m} \mathbf{x} = 0$$
 (70)

where:

$$c_{\rm m} = \frac{c_{\alpha}}{L_{\rm m}^2} \tag{71}$$

$$\mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{m}} = \frac{\mathrm{mg}}{\mathrm{L}_{\mathrm{m}}} \tag{72}$$

As was done for the primary system, x can be solved for according to Reference (27), giving:

$$\mathbf{x(t)} = \mathbf{e}^{\left(-\frac{\mathbf{c}_{m}}{2m} \Delta t\right)} (\mathbf{A}_{m} \sin q_{m} t + \mathbf{B}_{m} \cos q_{m} t)$$

where

$$q_{m} = \sqrt{\frac{k_{m}}{m} - (\frac{c_{m}}{2m})^{2}}$$
 (73)

and, writing this in terms of  $\Delta t$ , which ranges from time  $t_i$  to time  $t_{i+1}$ :

$$\mathbf{x}(\Delta t) = \mathbf{e}^{\left(-\frac{\mathbf{C}_{m}}{2m} \Delta t\right)} (\mathbf{A}_{m} \sin \mathbf{q}_{m} \Delta t + \mathbf{B}_{m} \cos \mathbf{q}_{m} \Delta t)$$
(74)

 $A_m$  and  $B_m$  can be solved here using Equations (39) and (42) the same way A and B were solved earlier for the beam. Doing this, the position and velocity of the impacting mass becomes:

$$\mathbf{x}(\Delta t) = \mathbf{e}^{\left(-\frac{c_{m}}{2m}\Delta t\right)} \left[ \left( \frac{\dot{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{t}_{1}^{(+)})}{q_{m}} + \frac{\mathbf{x}(\mathbf{t}_{1}^{(+)})c_{m}}{2mq_{m}} \right) \sin q_{m}\Delta t + \mathbf{x}(\mathbf{t}_{1}^{(+)}) \cos q_{m}\Delta t \right]$$
(75)

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}(\Delta t) = -\frac{\mathbf{c}_{m}}{2m} e^{\left(-\frac{\mathbf{c}_{m}}{2m} \Delta t\right)} \left[ \left( \frac{\dot{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)})}{\mathbf{q}_{m}} + \frac{\dot{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)}) \mathbf{c}_{m}}{2mq_{m}} \right) \sin q_{m} \Delta t + \mathbf{x}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q_{m} \Delta t \right] + e^{-\left(\frac{\mathbf{c}_{m}}{2m} \Delta t\right)} \left[ \left( \dot{\mathbf{x}}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)}) + \frac{\mathbf{x}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)}) \mathbf{c}_{m}}{2m} \right) \cos q_{m} \Delta t \right] - \mathbf{x}(\mathbf{t}_{i}^{(+)}) \mathbf{q}_{m} \sin q_{m} \Delta t \quad (76)$$

In the undamped case these equations become:

1.1.1.1.L

is '

.

Y

$$x(\Delta t) = \frac{\dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})}{q_{m}} \sin q_{m} \Delta t + x(t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q_{m} \Delta t$$
(77)

$$\mathbf{x}(\Delta t) = \mathbf{x}(t_{i}^{(+)}) \cos q_{m} \Delta t - \mathbf{x}(t_{i}^{(+)}) q_{m} \sin q_{m} \Delta t$$
(78)

and if the motion of the mass depends only upon the impacts, i.e., no gravity or damping forces:

$$x(\Delta t) = x(t_{i}^{(+)}) + \dot{x}(t_{i}^{(+)})\Delta t$$
 (79)

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}}(\Delta t) = \dot{\mathbf{x}}(t_{i}^{(+)}) = \text{constant}$$
(80)

# Appendix B

#### Laboratory Models

# Introduction

This appendix describes in detail the laboratory models and equipment used. The conversions from measured quantities to actual displacements are developed, as well as the methods used to indirectly measure some of the systems parameters.

# Free Vibration Model

The model used for the free vibration experiments is depicted in Figure 22 with the important dimensions, masses, and properties given in Figure 26. The 1/8" x 1" x 4-1/2" steel beam used as a flex-plate (note that only 3" of its length was free to bend as a spring) was attached by screws to a support depicted in Figure 27. This support was bolted onto a 1-1/2" x 40" x 42" steel plate which was itself bolted to 12" x 12" I-beams which extended up from the building's foundation.

Using Equation (50), with  $E = 28 \times 10^6$  lb  $\cdot$  in<sup>2</sup> and I = 1/6144 in<sup>4</sup>, the moment applied by the spring onto the aluminum beam was calculated as 15190 lb  $\cdot$  in. The moment of inertia of the beam and damper assembly was calculated by modeling the damper assembly as a point mass





26" from the assumed rotation point; this gave I = 0.1882slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup>. The moment of inertia was then measured by hanging the beam and damper assembly, minus the steel spring, from 1.5" of nylon fishing line and timing it through a number of cycles as it swung as a pendulum. Neglecting any damping, the equation of motion of this system is:

$$I\theta + rM_{T}g\theta = 0$$
 (81)

where r is the distance from the rotation point to the center of gravity of the assembly, and  $M_T$  is the total mass of the assembly. From this, the natural frequency of the system is:

$$\omega_{n} = \sqrt{\frac{rM_{r}g}{I}}$$
(82)

 $\omega_n$  was measured as 4.45 rad/sec and M is 0.08983 slug, r was calculated to be 15.4545", and g was taken as 32.174 ft/sec<sup>2</sup>. I can then be solved for using:

$$I = \frac{rM_{T}g}{\omega_{n}}$$
(83)

This gave I = 0.1880 slug  $\cdot$  ft<sup>2</sup>. This value of I was used in all calculations.

Using  $\omega_n = \sqrt{k/I}$ , Equation (55), and  $r_{c.g.} = 15.7648$ , the natural frequency of the beam, was calculated to be
26.34 rad/sec. When using a damping factor  $c \approx 0.02$ , which will be justified later in this appendix, the damped frequency was essentially the same. The actual frequency observed was measured as 25.9 rad/sec. The difference was assumed to be the result of small inaccuracies in the measured quantities. For the purpose of the computer simulation, the measured values of inertia and frequency were used.

The damper assembly consisted of an aluminum bar,  $1/4" \ge 1" \ge 6"$ , attached to the bottom of the  $1" \ge 1" \ge 24"$ aluminum beam. The stops were made of steel and could be attached anywhere along the aluminum bar, and were mounted as shown in Figure 28. The steel balls used as impacting masses were hung by nylon fishing lines attached to points 84" above the damper assembly, with one attachment 46" to the right of the damper assembly and the other 50" to the left. The mass was hung as a pendulum to minimize forces other than impact.

The motion of the beam was measured with two SR-4 Type AD-7, Lot #B-32, strain gages attached to the steel spring, centered on either side. These strain gages had a gage factor of 1.96 ± 2 percent. The strain gages were connected to a Q-amp, serial number 002578 which was installed in a Type 535A oscilloscope. The oscilloscope trace was photographed using an oscilloscope camera C-12. The peak-to-peak amplitudes on the photograph were then



Adjustable Stops (Impacting Surfaces)



Figure 28. Details of Damper Assembly and Impacting Surfaces measured in inches by a traveling microscope. These measurements were divided by the measured division size on the photograph to give the amplitudes in scope divisions. The number of scope divisions was multiplied by the Q-amp setting to give the total strain of the two strain gages had they had a gage factor of two. Since the gage factor was 1.96, and only the strain on one side of the stel spring was desired, this measured strain  $\varepsilon_m$  was co erted to the actual strain  $\varepsilon$  using:

$$\varepsilon = \frac{1}{2} \left( \frac{2.0}{1.96} \right) \varepsilon_{\rm m} \tag{84}$$

This strain can be converted into radians of displacement using:

$$\varepsilon = -\frac{Mu}{EI_s}$$
(85)

from Reference (26), where u = 1/16" is the distance from the neutral surface of the spring, and M is the moment calculated as 15190 lb  $\cdot$  in. This gives

> $\varepsilon = 0.02083\theta$  $\varepsilon = (20,830 u'')\theta$  (86)

So, for an  $\varepsilon$  given by Equation (86), the angular displacement  $\theta$  of the beam would be:

$$\theta = \frac{\varepsilon}{20,830} = (4.80 \times 10^5)\varepsilon$$
 (87)

where  $\epsilon$  is given in micro-inches/inch, and  $\theta$  is in radians.

Measurements were made by manually deflecting the beam, or primary system, until the oscilloscope trace was at the desired position on the screen. The oscilloscope was then set to make only one sweep when triggered. The sweep rate for most measurements was 0.5 sec/div or 0.2 sec/div. The oscilloscope camera was then fastened into position and the lens opened. In rapid succession the primary system was released and the oscilloscope was triggered, so the camera photographed one oscilloscope trace. The amplitude of the photographed cycles was measured in inches using a traveling microscope. These amplitudes were converted to scope divisions by dividing by the measured division width, then converted to strain by multiplying by the Q-amp strain setting. Equation (82) was then used to get the maximum angular displacement per cycle. s was obtained from these displacements using a linear least squares fit.

The natural damping of the beam assembly was measured by deflecting the beam a desired amount and allowing it to vibrate freely with no impacting mass in place. The photographed oscilloscope trace was then used to measure its damping using the log decrement method. From this, the damping factor c of Equation (54) was calculated using:

$$\frac{\mathbf{c}}{\mathbf{I}} = 2\zeta \omega_{n} \tag{88}$$

where

$$\zeta = \frac{\delta}{\sqrt{(2\pi)^2 + \delta^2}}$$
(89)

and

$$\delta = \frac{1}{j-1} \ln \left(\frac{A_1}{A_j}\right)$$
(90)

While the value of c obtained this way was always small, it was not constant. On a given day,  $\zeta$  appeared to be a linear function of the initial displacement, but this linear function changed from day to day. This is illustrated in Figure 29. For this reason,  $\zeta = 0.002$  was taken as giving a good average value for the amplitude at which most measurements were taken with the impact damper operating. This  $\zeta$  gave  $c \approx 0.02$  lb  $\cdot$  ft  $\cdot$  sec. This value of c was used in the computer simulation of the laboratory model.

In order to measure both the damping on the impacting mass, and the coefficient of restitution e between the mass and the stops, the position of the impacting mass had to be measured without interfering with its motion. This was done by mounting two pieces of white poster board 8" to the right of the beam assembly, facing the beam assembly. Horizontal and vertical lines were drawn at 1" intervals



across the poster board. Twenty-six feet to the left of the beam assembly, a lamp was pointed towards the assembly. With all other room lights dimmed, the impacting mass cast a sharp shadow upon the poster board. The impacting mass was removed from between the stops, and one of the stops was placed on the end of the damper beam, facing out. By watching the impacting mass's shadow on the poster board, the mass could be released from a known position and strike the stop at a known position. Assuming negligible damping, the velocity of the mass before impact can be calculated using:

2.2.2.2.2.2.16

$$mg\Delta h = \frac{1}{2}mV^2$$
 (91)

where  $\Delta h$  is the difference between the mass's height at release and its height at impact. The distance that the beam travels due to the impact can be determined from the oscilloscope trace, this maximum angular deflection times the natural frequency of the beam gave its maximum angular velocity, which occurred immediately after the impact. The velocity of the impacting mass after impact was calculated by using conservation of momentum, Equation (36). The coefficient of restitution, then, becomes:

$$e = -\frac{\dot{\theta}^{(+)}L - V^{(+)}}{\dot{\theta}^{(-)}L - V^{(-)}}$$
(92)

where (+) implies immediately after the impact, (-) implies immediately before the impact, L is the distance from the rotation point of the beam to the impact height, and  $\dot{\theta}^{(-)} = 0$ . Using this method the coefficient of restitution for the steel balls striking the steel stop was found to be between 0.40 and 0.50, as is seen in Table 2.

#### TABLE 2

QUANTITIES FOR CALCULATION OF COEFFICIENT OF RESTITUTION

M	Δh	v <sup>(-)</sup>	ε	θ m	<sub>θ</sub> (+)	v <sup>(+)</sup>	е
0.000481	11-3/4	7.94	100	0.00254	0.0657	-3.80	0.50
0.00149	11-1/2	7.85	280	0.00711	0.1841	-2.77	0.40
0.00503	11-3/8	7.81	900	0.0228	0.592	-2.31	0.46

Data from which coefficient of restitution e is calculated. m is in slugs,  $\Delta h$  is in inches,  $V^{(-)}$  and  $V^{(+)}$ are in feet/sec,  $\varepsilon$  is in micro-inches/inch,  $\theta_m$  is in radians, and  $\dot{\theta}^{(+)} = \theta_m \omega_n$  is in radians/sec.

The same lamp and poster board arrangement was used to measure the damping factor on the impacting mass, but without the beam assembly in place. The mass was displaced to a known position and released. After a known number of oscillations, its maximum amplitude was noted and its damping c was solved using:

$$\frac{c}{m} = 2\zeta \omega_n \tag{93}$$

where:

0.00503

$$\zeta = \frac{\delta}{\sqrt{(2\pi)^2 + \delta^2}}$$
$$\delta = \frac{1}{j-1} \ln \left(\frac{A_1}{A_j}\right)$$
$$\omega_n = \sqrt{\frac{g}{L}}$$
(94)

and L = 84" is the difference in height from where the mass is at rest and the points from which it is suspended. The damping measured in this way had an amplitude dependence;  $\zeta$  increased with amplitude. The values of c were calculated for low amplitudes to get the best correlation with the position of the mass when it was used for impact damping. The data and resulting values of c obtained are shown in Table 3.

# TABLE 3

DAMPING FACTOR							
m	A <sub>1</sub> /A <sub>j</sub>	j	Ŷ	δ	с <sub>т</sub>		
0.00481	4	22	0.0660	0.0105	0.0000217		
0.00149	4	61	0.0231	0.00368	0.0000235		

QUANTITIES FOR CALCULATION OF VISCOUS DAMPING FACTOR

Data from which the viscous damping coefficient of the impacting mass is calculated. m is in slugs, and c is in lb  $\cdot$  sec/ft.

179

0.00779

0.00124

0.0000267

## Forced Vibration Model

The model used for the forced vibration experiments is depicted in Figure 30 with the important dimensions, masses, and properties given in Figure 31. The first resonant frequency was calculated according to Reference (25), where the motion of a beam in free vibration with one end clamped and a point mass at the other end was solved. The beam was mounted upon a block clamped upon the pin of a pin-tree beam test apparatus. This test apparatus could rotate  $+24^{\circ}$  to  $-24^{\circ}$  at a frequency range of 0 to 83.3 Hz (0 to 5000 RPM). For computational purposes the beam was treated as if its end extended to the center of the pin, where a known sinusoidal angular displacement was applied.

The damper assembly was simply an aluminum bar, 1/4" x 1" x 5" mounted on top of the vibrating beam, with the stops mounted as shown in Figure 28. The stops were made of steel and could be attached anywhere on the aluminum bar. The steel ball used as the impacting mass was suspended by two pieces of fishing line attached to points 93" above and 74" to one side and 90" above and 75" to the other side of the damper assembly. The impacting mass was suspended in order to minimize friction forces on it, so its motion could be treated as resulting entirely from its impacts with the stops. When the mass was between the damper stops it could displace from its rest position a





few inches at best, so its velocity due to its pendulum motion was very small compared to the velocity imparted to it by the impacts.

An accelerometer, Model MB 303, serial # 149235, was mounted on the beam 1" below the bottom of the damper assembly. The acclerometer signal was amplified using a model 2614B amplifier powered by an Endevco Model 2621 power supply. High frequency noise was filtered out using the low-pass filter of Figure 32, and the signal was then recorded using a Honeywell visicorder oscillograph Model 2106 with an M-1000 galvanometer. The output was also used with a universal counter timer, Model 726C, to accurately determine the frequency of the system. The resulting visicorder output for the forced vibration model without and with the impacting mass is shown in Figures 33 and 34, respectively.

 $\sum$ 



Fig. 32. Low-Pass Filter Used to Filter the Amplified Accelerometer Output Before Inputting it Into the Visicorder



Trace of Acceleration Versus Time of Force vert inch on the à 5 1. Impacting Mass. sec. sec Vibration Laboratory Model with No 8 1 Ì s represents approximately Visicorder ຕື 1 Fig -l6 ft/sec a X H 1 . , **`**., いていてい . . . . ; l .



### Appendix C

### Computer Simulations

The following pages contain two FORTRAN 77 computer programs which solve for the motion of both the primary system and the impacting mass for an impact damper in free vibration. The first program is the ideal case, in which the primary system is undamped except for the impact damping, and the motion of the impacting mass is due entirely to the impacts. The second program assumes a lightly damped impacting mass hanging as a pendulum. Though both programs were written with the laboratory model in mind, they are applicable to any one degree of freedom system in free vibration using a one degree of freedom impact damper.

While comments explaining the programs are inserted in appropriate places, a few additional words are in order. The position of the primary system was put in the form of:

 $\theta_1(\Delta t) = a \sin (\omega \Delta t) + b \cos (\omega \Delta t)$ 

and

for the first and second programs, respectively. The numbers associated with parameters in these programs

were assigned with units of feet, seconds, and slugs intended.

The only sources of error in the program are the computer round-off errors, and the errors in defining an impact as occurring whenever the impacting mass and a stop were less than  $10^{-6}$  ft from each other. This leads to small errors in position and velocity of the system in impact. In order to judge the seriousness of these errors, as well as to insure the equations and solution approach are correct, the errors in velocities and momentum were calculated after each impact, using Equations (31) and (36). The only other serious source of errors lies in the approximations and assumptions made in the derivation of equations of Appendix A. While the programs will generate output for any magnitude of  $\theta_m$ , this output will be reasonably correct only if the assumption of small angles is not violated.

12

program IDEAL

THIS PROGRAM FOLLOWS THE SYSTEM THROUGH A SERIES OF IMPACTS IN THE "IDEAL" CASE, I.E. WITH NO VISCOUS DAMPING OR GRAVILY AFFECTS. integer i.m.mm.c.n.j.imperr
parameter (n=50) real  $phi(\emptyset:n)$ , the tas(1:n), the tav( $\emptyset:n$ ), tdots(1:n), tdotv( $\emptyset:n$ ), time(Din),vels(lin),velv(Din),cone,ctwo,a(Din),b(Din), as, bb, dtheta, ltheta, inct, ltime, t, tt, tts, at, tat, q, s, error(0:n),maxerr,vari,impt(1:n), inert, mass, 1, e, 11, dd, gone. gtwo, deltat, il, ir, x(Ø:n), vel(Ø:n), d, thetam(Ø:n), resid, . errmom, errvel, bmass, dt(Ø:n), mtt, mtts, mimpt(l:n) The parameters varied are defined below. Only one set of parameters are varied here. In practice, "do loops" were used to obtain a large combination of parameters. mass=U.ØJ2 d=0.25 c=Ø.5 gone=25.£ 1=2.23 Conditions from any previous run set to zero in the loop to line 181. do 10: j=1.n.1 thet. (j)=U.M thet iv(j)=U.U tdot.(j)=U.U tdute(j)=0.0 time ,)=J.Ø vels(i)=J.Ø າ∈່າ∨(ງ)າປະປ x(j)=j.3 thit:r:(j) ů.Ø 101 continue The remaining parameters are defined.  $pLi(\theta)$ , thetav $(\theta)$ , time $(\theta)$ , inert, data 1.2(1), ENGEV(1)/ : · . 11, - 11, 1. 11, 11, 11, 1893, : 0.0.0.87 : print\*. print\*, print\*, ' '
print\*, ' '
print\*, ' '
print\*, ' '
print\*, ' initial phase angle=', phi(Ø),'initial
 maximus devicetions', thetev(0),'natural frequency\*', qone,
 'the starting time', thetev(0),'noment of inertia of the
 printry matse', inert,'magnitude of the secondary mass=',
 mats.'iength of the primary systems',1,'the coefficient
 of recolling the primary systems',1,'the The impacting maps is given an initial position next to the stop opposit the direction on the initial deflection of the system. x())=t:::tuv())\*1+(d/2,)) Reproduced from best available copy. 109

print\*, print\*, print\*, print\*, 'mass=',muss print\*, 'effective d=',d deltat=Ø.01 c:.cac=∅.0] print\*, 'e=',e print\*, 'x(∅)=',x(∅) print\*, 'deltat=',deltat print\*, ' print\*. print\*. print\*. . The loop to line  $9\mathfrak{A}\mathfrak{B}$  solves for the motion of the system through n impacts. do 900 i=1,n,1 inct=Ø.Ul deitat\*Ø.Ø1 Here the motion of the system is solved for after the known time of impact. a(1-1)=tdotv(1-1)/qone b(1-1) = thetav(1-1) thetam(i-1)=sqrt(a(i-1)\*a(i-1)+b(i-1)\*b(i-1)) aa=(velv(i-1)) bb=x(1-1) The loop to line 500 iterates to the time of the next impact using the requirement that the impacting mass must remain between the stops. An impact is considered to have ocurred whenever the impacting mass comes within  $\emptyset$ . DUDUB1 feet of either stop. do 600 c=1,500,1 time(1)=time(1-1)+deltat thetas(i)=(a(i-1)\*sin(qone\*deltat)+b(i-1)\*cos(qone\*deltat)) x({)=(aa\*deltat)+bb il=thetas(i)\*1-(d/2) 1r=11+d if (abs(x(i)-i1) .LE. Ø.ØØØØØ1) then goto 611 elseif (abs(x(i)-ir) .LE. Ø.ØØDØØ1) then goto GU1ciscuf ((x(1)-11) .LE. U.Ø) then inct=0.5\*inct deltut=deltat-inct orto 500 elseif ((x(1)-1r) .GE. Ø.Ø) then inct=£.5\*inct deltatrdeltat-inct goto 500 else deltat=deltat+inct goto 5*00* endif 500 continue 600 continue 601 continue if (c.ge. 500) then goto 993 endlf if (c.LE. 2) then goto Sil

110

•

endif 888 continue The conditions immediately before the time of impact just iterated to are solved for. tdots(i)=qone\*(a(1-1)\*cos(qone\*deltat)-b(1-1)\*sin(qone\*deltat)) thetav(1)=thetas(1) vels(1)=velv(1-1)tdotv(i)=(1.*L*/(inert+macs\*1\*1))\*((tdots(i)\*(inert-mass\*1\*1\*e) +vels(i)\*mass\*1\*(1.*U*+e))) velv(1)=(1/(inert+mass\*1\*1))\*(tdots(1) \*inert\*(1.0+e)+ vels(1)\*(mass\*l-(inert\*e/l))) 988 continue goto 994 993 continue print '(a,13)','the time iteration did not converge for 1=',1 994 continue Here the motion of the system is given for the first 15 impacts. print \*,'impact time deltat thetas x tdotv xdot thetam dthotam' : do 950 j=1,15,1 print '(17,18.5,18.6,10.4,19.6,19.4,19.4,17.4,19.4)',j, time(j,,time(j)-time(j-1),thetas(j),x(j),tdotv(j),velv(j), the Unit(j), thetam(j) - thetam(j-1) continue 95Ø print", ' print\*, print\*. The errors in position and velocity across the first 15 impacts are given below. do 97∬ j=1,15,1 errmom=inert\*(tdotv(j)-tdots(j))+mass\*l\*(velv(j)-vels(j)) errvel=e\*(vels(j)-tdots(j)\*1)-(tdotv(j)\*1-velv(j))
print\*, 'impact=',j.'errmom=',errmom,'errvel=',errvel 37Ø continue print\*, print\*. print\*, , , print\*, 'impact thetam dtime' time dthetam Ithcla=0.1 ltime=U.Ø deltat=Ø.Ø m ≈ 1 tt=Ø.Ø tts=0.0 mtt.-U.Ø mtts:#.Ø at=U.U tat=J.Ø erior(0)=0.1 zetal=v.Ø tzeta=0.0 dt(#)=U.Ø mm = 1 In the loop to line 980 the maximum positive amplitude the reaches during much cycle is obtained from the motion of the system already obtained. Information needed to do a least squares to these . 111

amplitudes is also obtained. The loop also looks shead to see when the system goes through a cycle without an impact on the assumption that this when the damper becomes imperative. The loop is exited before the damper becomes inoperative. do 920 j=1,n-1,1 if (b(j) .eq. 0.0) then gots 981 endlf deltat=(atan(≥(j)/b(j)))/gone if (deltat .ic. Ø.Ø) then deltat=deltat+(3.1415927/gone) endif if ((b(j)\*cos(gone\*deltat)) .le. Ø.Ø) then goto 979 elsoif ((time(j+12)~time(j+11)) .ge. Ø.25) then goto 981 endif if ((time(j)+deltat) .le. time(j+1)) then
if (deltat .ge. Ø.Ø) then disheta=thotam(j)-)theta t=time(j)+deltat
dt(j)=t-ltime
print '(13,f9.4,f9.4,f9.4,f9.4)',j,thetam(j),t, dtheta,dt(j) restd≠j ltheta=thetam(j) ltime=t impt(m)=t nimpt(nm)=t tt=tl+t ils=its+t\*t al=at+thetam(j) tat=tat+t\*thetam(j) error(m)=thetam(j) n;≃m+1 endif endlf 979 continue 98Ø continue **S81** continue m=ia - 1 if (tts .eq. D.D) then goto 983 elsoif (m.eq. Ø) then goto 983 elscif (tts .eq. tt\*tt) then goto 983 endlf A least squares approximation is fit to the maximum amplitudes The malinum deviation from this approximation is beluy. obtained, as well as the variance. s=(((),Ø\*m)\*tot)-(at\*tt))/(((],Ø\*m)\*tts)-(tt\*tt)) q=(いt-(い\*tt))/(1.以作品) Max(い n=ビ.お vai i=n.u du 30% j=1.m,1 error(j)=error(j)=q=(s\*impt(j)) if (abs(error(j)) .ge. maxerr) then maker recorder(j) 1mpennej 112

:

endif vari=vari+error(j)\*error(j) continue print\*, 'up to the'.m,'peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q='.q,'and s='.s,'with max error=', maxerr,'at peak=',imperr,'and variance=',vari 982 983 continue print\*, print\*, print\*, . . . . if (resid .ge. n) then goto 1882 endlf if (resid+25 .ge. n) then goto 1951 endlf print\*, ' ' Here the conditions at the impacts beginning where the damper was assumed to become ineffective are given. This gives the residual amplitude. After that the first 15 cycles of the ineffectively damped portion of the system are given. print \*, 'impact time deltat thetas tdotv xdot × thetom dthetom' : thetaw constant do 1550 j=resid.resid+25.1 print '(17.f8.5,f8.6,f0.4,f9.6,f9.4,f9.4,f7.4,f9.4)',j, time(j).time(j)-time(j-1),thetas(j),x(j),tdotv(j),velv(j), theiam(j),thetam(j)-thotam(j-1) 1 195Ø continue 1951 continue print\*, ' ' print\*, 'impact thetam time dthetam dtime' tat=Ø.Ø Ithota=Ø.1 ltime=J.Ø deltat=Ø.Ø an = 1 tt=S.Ø tts=V.Ø at=0.0 mtt=Ø.Ø mtts≃U.Ø orro: (0)=0.1 zetat=U.U tzeta=Ø.Ø JE(1)=U.1 mm = 1 error(0)=0.1 do 1980 j=resid.n.l
 if (b(j) .eq. Ø.0) then goto 1981 endif deltat=(atan(a(j)/b(j)))/gone if (d.)tat .le. Ø.Ø) then | deltat=deltat+(3.1415927/gone) endit If ((b(j)\*cos(qone\*deltat)) .le. Ø.Ø) then coto 1979 crid if if ((Cime(j)+deltat) .le. time(j+1)) then ٠ 113

•

ł ł if (deltat .ge. 0.0) then dtheta=thetam(j)-ltheta ltime=t i = t(n) = tmiting t(nim)=t 11=11+1 tls=lts+t\*t st=at+thetam(j)
tat=tat+t'uhetam(j) error(m)=thetam(j) m = m + 1 If (m .ge . 16) then goto 1981 endif endif endif 1979 continue 1982 continue 1981 continue m##+1
if (tts .eq. Ø.Ø) then
goto 1983
elself (m .eq. Ø) then
goto 1983 elseif (tts .eq. tt\*tt) then goto 1983 endif  $s = (((1, \mathfrak{G}^*m)^*tat) - (at^*tt))/(((1, \mathfrak{G}^*m)^*tts) - (tt^*tt))$   $q = (at - (s^*tt))/(1, \mathfrak{G}^*m)$ maxcrr=U.N var (=Ø.Ø do 1982 j≈1,m,l error(j)=error(j)=q-(s\*impt(j)) if (abs(error(j)) .ge. maxerr) then maxerrmerror(j) Imporr=j endii vari=vari+error(j)\*error(j) continue print\*, 'up to the',m,'peak the least squares fit to the peak\_ is thetmosts"t with q=',q,'and s=',s,'with max error=', maxerr,'at peak=',imperr,'and variance=',vari 1982 : 2 1983 continue 999 1*01*/2 continue continue 1600 continue 1001 continue end • 114 ٨,

the time iteration did not converge for i= 45 impact deltat thetas time tdotv xdot thetam dthetam x .067687 2.2958 7.8866 .06769 .0121 -.098000 .0926 -. 8874 1 .12217 .054383 .18766 .065595 .330895 -2.7636 2 .0923 .4363 .0940 .0013 .0907 3 .6110 .149614 -2.2510 -. 0033 .26345 .075782 .41144 .147998 4.0967 .2110 .0003 4 -.#800 -.323185 -.ØU14 .#789 .203116 -.8631 -.318375 -6.0511 1.727ø 5 .มถวล -1.1169 -.0055 .41144 .147900 .54952 .090400 .55843 .046505 .66214 .103713 .78197 .119824 .0050 6 -.4493 .0012 -.8453 -.225918 7 1.7234 4.9869 .0025 -.ØU26 .0746 .291290 3 -.6468 -4.9173 . 9769 -.0035 9 -.0775 -.297915 .1760 3.2623 .0779 -.ø011 .86711 .085146 .93917 .072654 1.02567 .081503 10 .0470 -.020143 1.5448 3.5436 .Ø776 -.0002 -1.2663 -.7µ37 -6.2654 11 .0494 .235133 .0708 -.Ø069 .9683 -. 1675 -. 275461 .0731 12 .0023 13 1.07296 .052209 14 1.18756 .114606 -.8440 -.224804 1.3695 4.1010 . #707 -.0024 .0500 .254357 -.7959 -4.9939 .0662 -.0046 -.ØC62 -.27256Ø 15 1.293#8 .105511 -.1705 2.1134 .Ø665 .0004

Impact=	i	errmom=	.18626	45150-07	errvel=	.2084185790-06
impact=	2	errnom=	.745ø5	6ມ6ມອ+ມ∃	errvel=	238418579e-Ø6
impact≖	3	<b>ុកក</b> ណៈភា.÷	.74595	80000-08	errvel≖	950674316e-Ø6
impact=	4	erraon≞	. សាសាណ	អវរៈថាភ្នំ (អូវ)	errv⊡l≞	.47(037158e-06
1mpact≌	5	ດເປັນຫຼ	11175	していりにいたい	errvel≞	235418579e-Ø6
impa∈t≖	6	Crrwona≖	07252	84~ຍແບ່ໄດ	errvel=	.200418579e-ØG
fmpaci≃	7	en nuom e	109000	32240-07	errvel≖	596046448e-06
Implict=	8	errach#	745.5	おんこうらいりは	errvel=	208418579e-06
impaci=	9	ennome	.37262	940.00-49	urrvel≞	.238418579e-Ø6
Impact≃	11	J erraom≖	E .Leba	73510 07	7 errvel≖	119209290e-06
1mpact=	11	l ∈rrmon≞		73224 - M	/ errvel≖	.230418579a- <b>#6</b>
impact≖	12	2 crr.ca=	1117	58792-97	? errvol≓	.2004185796-06
Impact≖	10	) enreca=	<b>5</b> 587	93545 - 30	i errvel≠	12004185296-06
Top out -	14	l cr≞coa=	1117	50209 -07	( errvel≉	2:0:0106796-06
Implicts	1 5	o ennaem≊	. <b></b>	はいよ しんご ナビは	) errvel≖	.476337158e-06

impad	t thetam	time	dthetam	dtime
2	. B941	.1295	0060	.11.95
4	.1:6/13	.3853	0.47	.2558
7	.18655	.6445	0:/63	.2592
1 ø	.0776	. 9439	<b>0</b> 043	.2594
13	<b>. 107 10</b> ,7	1.1632	0069	.2593

Copy available to DTIC does not permit fully legible repreduction

16 .0644 1.4238 -.0063 .2598
19 .0594 1.6031 -.005J .2601
22 .0526 1.9427 -.0069 .2596
26 .0410 2.4622 -.0115 .5196
up to the 9
peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q=
.975641600e-01 and s= -.229617860e-01 with max error\* .840116292e-03 at peak=
4 and variance= .214724355e-05

Impact	t thetam	time	dthetam	dtime
26	.0410	2.4622	<b></b> ສ59ມ	2.4622
28	.0354	2.7238	0056	.2616
3ø	.0298	2.9863	ØØ57	.2625
32	.0239	3.2495	ØØ58	.2632
34	. 0180	3.5136	0059	.2641
36	.Ø117	3.7778	ØN63	.2642
38	.0056	4.1299	0061	.2521
39	. <i>UØ</i> 55	4.2669	ØC81	.2370
48	. 11844	4.5122	0011	.2453
42	.0025	5.2522	ØØ19	.74.09
43	. 0024	5.7657	0001	.5135
up to	the 11			

-

up to the 11 peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q= .6432Ø1843c-Ø1 and s= -.123049796e-Ø1 with max error= .9575Ø3542e-Ø2 at peak= 11 and variance= .354233722e-Ø3

```
•••
                      program LABSIM
                      THIS PROGRAM ATTEMPTS TO SIMULATE THE CONDITIONS EXPERIENCED IN THE LABORATORY WHILE FOLLOWING THE IMPACT THROUGH A SERIES OF
                       IMPACTS.
                      integer i.m.c.n.j.p.imperr.mm.y.u
parameter (n=500)
                      real phi(Ø:n), thetas(l:n), thetav(Ø:n), tdots(l:n), tdotv(Ø:n),
                           time(U:n),vels(l:n),velv(U:n),cone,ctwo,a(U:n),b(U:n),
                    •
                            aa, bb, dtheta, ltheta, inct, ltime, t,
                    ŧ
                            inert, mass, 1, e, 11, dd, qone, qtwo, mits, impt(1:n),
                            impt(1:n),tt,tts,at,tat,error(1:n),s,q,
                            maxerr.vari,dt(l:n),mimpt(l:n),
                    :
                            deltat, 11, ir, x(Ø:n), vel(Ø:n), d, thetam(Ø:n),
                    2
                            errmom,errvel,dia,resid
                    :
                        print*,
print*,
                                   . .
                        print*,
                     The same parameters varied in the laboratory are varied here. Note
that the diameter of the impacting mass is subracted from the actual
gap to give an effective gap. Also note that the same damping constant
is not used for each mass.
                       do 1001 p=1,3,1
    if (p .eq. 1) then
    mass=0.000481
                         ctwo-U.UNUU217
                         d1a=J.469/12.0
                        elseif (p.eq. 2) then
                         mass=ภ.ยต149
                         ctwo=Ø.WNØU235
                         dr1a=1.6875/12.0
                        else
                         mass=Ø.80503
                          ctwo=約.以以以必267
                         dia=1.031/12.0
                        endif
                        d=3.0*(1.0/12.0)
                        d=d-dla
                          e=Ø.5
                      Previous values of the system position's and velocities are set to zero.
                       do 101 j=1,n,1
thetas(j)=0.0
thetav(j)=0.0
                       tdots(j)=Ø.Ø
                       tdotv(j)=Ø.Ø
                       time(j)=U.Ø
                       vels(j)=∅.Ø
                       velv(j)=Ø.Ø
                       x(j)=Ø.Ø
                       thetam(j)=Ø.Ø
              101
                       continue
                        print*,
                                   .
                                      .
                        print*,
print*,
                                    .
                     The remainder of the system's parameters are defined.
                                 phi(Ø), thetav(Ø).time(Ø), gone, inert.1.
                       data
                                 velv(Ø),m,tdotv(Ø),cone,11/
                     :
```

Ø.Ø,-Ø.10,Ø.Ø,25.9,Ø.188,2.21. 8.0,1.0.0,0.02,7.0/ 1 B.B.I.B.B.B.B.Z.7.B7
print\*,'initial phase angle=', phi(B),'initial
 maximum deflection=', thetav(B),
 'the starting time=',time(B),'moment of inertia of the
 primary mass\*',inert,'magnitude of the secondary mass\*',
 mass,'length of the primary system=',1,'the coefficient
 of restitution=',e,'secondary masses
 initial val(B) 'the gas settings' d 'desired initial velocity=',vel(\$),'the gap setting=',d,'desired number of impacts=',n qone=25.9 qtwo=sqrt((32.174/11)-(ctwo/(2.Ø\*mass))\*(ctwo/(2.Ø\*mass))) print\*, print\*, • print\*, . The initial position of the impacting mass is placed against the stop opposite to the initial deflection.  $x(\emptyset)$ =thetav( $\emptyset$ )\*1+(d/2. $\emptyset$ ) print\*, 'mass\*',mass print\*, 'effective d#',d print-, deltat= $\emptyset$ . $\mathbb{U}$ 1 --int\*, ' $\times(\emptyset)$ =', $\times(\emptyset)$ print\*, 'x(Ø)=',x(Ø)
print\*, 'deltat=',deltat
print\*, 'e=',e
print\*, 'qone=',qone
print\*, 'qtwo=',qtwo The loop to line 900 solves for the series of impacts. do 900 i=1,n,1 inct=Ø.Øl deltat=Ø.Ø1 The motion is solved for after a known time of impact. a(i-1)=(tdotv(i-1)/qone+thetav(i-1)\*cone/(2.Ø\*inert\*qone)) b(1-1)=thetav(1-1)thetim(i-1)=sqrt(a(i-1)\*a(i-1)+b(i-1)\*b(i-1)) aa=(velv(1-1)/qtwo+(ctwo\*x(1-1)/(2.Ø\*mass\*qtwo))) bb=x(i-1)The loop to line GOO iterates to the next time of impact. This iteration uses the requirement that the impacting mass remain between the stops. An impact is defined as ocurring whenever the impacting mass is within Ø.JØDUD1 feet of either stop. do 600 c=1,500,1 time(f)=time(f-1)+deltat thetis(1)=(exp((~(cone)/(2.Ø\*inert)\*deltat)))\* : (a(i+1)\*sin(qone\*deltat)+b(i+1)\*cos(qone\*deltat)) x(1)=(exp((-(ctwo)/(2.0\*mass))\*deltat))\* (aa\*sin(qtwo\*deltat)+bb\*cos(qtwo\*deltat)) : il=thetas(i)\*1-(d/2) ir=1]+d if (abs(x(1)-11) .LE. 0.000001) then goto UN1 elself (abs(x(i)-ir) .LE. Ø.ØØØØ01) then goto 601 elseif ((x(i)-il) .LE. Ø.Ø) then Incl. 3.5\* Inct delugiedeltat-inct goto ບໍ່ມີມີ 118

1

elseif ((x(i)-ir) .GE. Ø.Ø) then inct=Ø.5\*inct deltat=deltat-inct goto 500 else deltat=deltat+inct goto 500 endif 500 continue 6៧ស continue 681 continue if (c .ge. 500) then goto 993 endif if (c.LE. 2) then goto 800 endlf 800 continuo The conditions immediately before the time of impact just iterated to are solved. tdots(i)=-(cone/(2.\$\*inert))\*(exp((-cone/(2.\$\*inert)\*deltat)))\* (a(1-1)\*sin(qone\*deltat)+b(1-1)\*cos(qone\*deltat))+ 1 (exp((-cone/(2.Ø\*inert)\*deltat)))\*gone\* (a(1-1)\*cos(gone\*deltat)-b(1-1)\*sin(gone\*deltat)) thetay(f)=thetas(1) vels(1)=-(ctwo/(2.Ø\*mass))\*(exp((-ctwo/(2.Ø\*mass)\*deltat)))\* (as\*sin(qtwo\*deltat)+bb\*cos(qtwo\*deltat))+ (exp((-ciwo/(2.@\*mass)\*deltat)))\*qtwo\* (aa^cos(qtwo^deltat)-bb\*sin(qtwo\*deltat)) tdotv(1)=(1.0/(inert+mass\*1\*1))\*((tdots(i)\*(inert-mass\*1\*1\*e) +vels(1)\*mass\*1\*(1.Ø+e))) velv(1)=(1/(inert+mass\*1\*1))\*(tdots(1) \*incrt\*(1.0+e)+ vels(i)\*(mass\*l~(inert\*e/1))) 988 continue goto 994 993 continue print '(a,i3)','the time iteration did not converge for i=',i 994 continue 5000 continue Here the system's condition at the first 15 impacts is given. print \*,'impact thetam dthetam' deltat thetas time X tdotv xdot : do 950 j=1.15,1 print '(17,18.5,f8.6,f8.4,f9.6,f9.4,f9.4,f7.4,f9.4)',j time(J), time(j)-time(j-1), the tas(j), x(j), tdotv(j), volv(j), . thetim(j), thetem(j) thetem(j-1) 55¢ continue 951 continue print\*, print\*, print\*, . The errors in the momentum and velocity heross the first 15 impacts is given. They should be small enough to be assumed neglible. do 970 j=1,10,1 errmom=inert\*(tdotv(j)-tdots(j))+mass\*1\*(velv(j)-vels(j)) 119

errvel=e\*(vels(j)-tdots(j)\*l)-(tdotv(j)\*l-velv(j)) print\*, 'impact=',j,'errmom\*',errmom,'errvel=',errvel 97Ø continue print\*. print\*. print\*, ' ' print\*, 'impact thetam time dthetam dtime' ltheta 0.1 ltime=0.0 deltat=Ø.Ø m=1 tt=Ø.Ø tts=J.Ø at=IJ.Ø tat=0.0 mtt=Ũ.Ø mtts=Ø.Ø error(U)=Ø.1 dt(U)=J.Ø mm=1 The following loop takes the series of positions and solves for the peak positive amplitudes. It also looks ahead to see when the system goes through a complete cycle without an impact to on the that this is when the damper becomes ineffective. Information needed to perform a least squares fit to these peaks is also obtained. do 98& j=2,n-2,1 if (a(j) .cq. ガ.Ø) then goto 98Ø endif phi(j)=atan(b(j)/a(j)) deitat=(atan(2.0\*inert\*qone/cone)-phi(j))/qone if (deltat .le. Ø.Ω) then deltat#deltat+(3.1415927/qone) endlf if ((b(j)\*cos(qone\*deltat)) .le. Ø.Ø) then goto 979 elself ((time(j+2)-time(j+1)) .ge.  $\emptyset.25$ ) then 00to 981 endlf if ((time(j)+deltat) .le. time(j+1)) then - 行(deltat .ge、ルボ) then dth.Lu=theLum(j)-ltheta t=ting(j)+d\_ltat dc(j)=t-ltime Frint '(13,19.4,f0.4,f9.4,f9.4)',j,thetam(j),t. dlheta,dl(j) rosid=j+2 Ithets=thetam(j) Itime -t Impl(m)=t mimpt(ma)=t tt=tl+t til its+t\*t al- LFth tom(j) tat tat t\*thetam(j) i ror(m)⇒thetam(j) a. - m + 1 • end if en if 979 continue 120

988 continue 981 continue m = m - 1if (its .eq. Ø.Ø) then goto 583 elself (m.eq. Ø) then goto 983 elseif (tts .eq. tt\*tt) then goto 983 endif The following equations solve for the least squares fit to maximum amplitude of the cycles just obtained. The maximum departure from this least squares approximation and the variance is also obtained. s=(((1.6\*m)\*tat)-(at\*tt))/(((1.6\*m)\*tts)-(tt\*tt))q=(.t-(s\*tt))/(1.6\*m)maxerrů.Ø var 1=1.0 do 982 j#1,m,1 error(j)=error(j)=q-(s\*impt(j)) if (abs(error(j)) .ge. maxerr) then maxorr≠error(j) iuperr≝j endif vari=vari+error(j)\*error(j) 982 continue print\*, 'up to the',m,'peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q=',q,'and s=',s,'with max error=', maxerr,'at peak=',imperr,'and variance=',vari print\*, '' ŧ 1 print\*, ' print\*, ' ' 2985 continue 983 continue if (resid .go. n) then goto 1882 er if it resid+25 .ge. n) then geto 1951 endif print\*, ' ' Here the conditions at the impacts beginning where the damper was accurate to here the first 15 cycles of the ineffectively demped partion of the system are given. print \*,'impact time deltat thetas x tdotv
 thetam dthatam'
 do 1950 j=resid.resid+25.1
 print '(17,f8.5,f8.6,f8.4,f9.6,f9.4,f' 4,f7.4,f9.4)',j,
 time(j).time(j)-time(j-1).thetas(j).c()).tdotv(j).velv(j),
 thetam(j).thetam(j).tdotv(j).velv(j). xdot : 1 thetam(j),thetam(j)-thetam(j-1) 1950 continue 1951 continue print\*, ' ' print\*, 'impact thetam time dthetam dtime'

57

tat=Ø.Ø ltheta=Ø.1 ltime=0.0 deltat=Ø.Ø m≖1  $tt = \emptyset. \emptyset$ tts=Ø.Ø at=U.Ø mtt=Ø.Ø mtts=Ø.Ø error(Ø)=Ø.1 zetat=U.Ø tzeta=Ø.Ø dt(Ø)=0.0 mm=1 error(g)=g.1 do 1980 j=resid.n.1 if (a(j).eq. Ø.Ø) then goto 1980 endif phi(j)=atan(b(j)/a(j))deltat=(atan(2.Ø\*inert\*qone/cone)-phi(j))/qone if (deltat .le. Ø.Ø) then deltat=deltat+(3.1415927/qone) endif if ((b(j)\*cos(qone\*deltat)) .le. Ø.Ø) then goto 1979 endlf if ((time(j)+deltat) .le. time(j+1)) then if (deltat .go. N.M) then dtheta=thetam(j)-)theta  $t = t_{inc}(j) + dc$ ) tat  $a_{c}(j) = t - 1 t_{inc}$  pr(iit) = (13, f9, 4, f9, 4, f9, 4, f9, 4)', j, thetam(j), t, ...dtheta,dt(j) ltheta=thetam(() ltime=t imps(m)=t minpl(mm)=t tl-it+t tts=tts+t\*t atest+thctam(j) tat-tat+t\*thetam(j) conor(m)sthetam(j) m=m+1 if (m .ge . 16) then goto 1981 endlf endif endlf 1979 cont inue 1501 continue 1981 continue m ≂ ra ~ 1 If (ttp .eq.  $\emptyset$ . $\emptyset$ ) then guto 1983 endif s=(((1, L\*m)\*tat)-(at\*tt))/(((1, J\*m)\*tts)-(tt\*tt)) q=(21-(5\*tt))/(1.0\*m) 122

maxerr=Ø.Ø
var(=0.0
do 1902 j=1,m,1
error(j)=error(j)=q=(s\*impt(j))
if (abs(error(j)) .ge. maxerr) then
maxerr=error(j)
immeder=1 imperr=j endif vari=vari+error(j)\*error(j) varievaries (c), c), c), c), c), c), c), c), continue print\*, 'up to the', m, 'peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetaurq+s\*t with q=',q,'and s=',s,'with max error=', maxerr,'at peak=',imperr,'and variance=',vari continue 1982 1 : 1983 999 1002 continue continue 1.000 continue 1001 continue end

initial phase angle= .00000000000+00 initial maximum deflection= -.10000000001+00 the starting time= .0000000000+00 moment of inertia of the primary mass= .107999994+00 magnitude of the secondary mass= .400999995e-13 length of the primary system= 2.210000004 the coefficient of restitution= .500000000+00 secondary masses initial velocity= .00000000000 the gap setting= .2109166680+00 desired number of impacts= 500

mass≈ .480909095e-03 effective d= .210916668e+00 x(U)= -.115541667e+UU deltat= .9999999978e-Ø2 e= .569.804455.56+00 qone= .258999996e+#2 qtwo= 2.14377642 the time iteration did not converge for i=150 time deltat thetas .05912.059122 -.0031 .10972.050594 .0932 .15831.049695 .0572 impact xdot thetam tdotv x dthetam thetas x -.ND41 -.114616 .0979 2.5324 8.4316 -.ØJ21 . 8051 -1.5881 . #933 . 0004 .1972 -2.0000 -5.9662 2 -.0010 .0964 .3935 4.3304 -.0008 4 5 -1.2935 -6.5124.0944 ·-.Ø02Ø -.6221 1.2261 .0944 .0000 6 7 4.8082 .0937 1.6360 -.0007 8 2.4067 5.5684 .0933 -.0003 -.7131 -5.1892 .0923 -. **0**011 3.8401 1.0 . 3914 -.0009 .3631 2.2773 5.6191 .0907 11 -.0007 .#897 12 -.6490 -5.0017 -.001Ø -. 0872 -. 298257 .0697 .259508 .4319 13 3.9748 .0888 -.0009 14 1.12431 .139504 .0697 .259508 15 1.20832 .084607 -.0318 -.286139 -1.3413 -6.4926 .0068 -.0020 -.7575 .7655 .0069 . 0001 impact= 1 errmom= -.400468707e-07 errvel= .119209290e-05
impact= 2 errmom= -.2328000644e-07 errvel= .715255737e-06 Impact= 3 crrmom= .293366611e-07 errvel= -.715255737e-06 Impact= 4 errmon= -.372529/38e-88 errvel= .476337158e-86 impact= 5 errnom= .149011612e=87 errvel= .00000000+000
impact= 6 errnom= -.931322575e=89 errvel= -.235418579e=86 impact= 6 errmom= -.931322575e-#9 errvel= -.235418579e-#6
impact= 7 errmom= -.265426004c+#7 errvel= .238418579e-#6
impact= 8 errmom= -.5553#1055e+#7 errvel= .953674316e+#6
impact= 9 errmom= .223517418e+#7 errvel= .476937153e+#6
impact= 10 errmom= -.010193217e-#8 errvel= .476937153e+#6
impact= 11 errmom= -.471482553e+#7 errvel= .953074316e+##
impact= 12 errmom= .91322575e+#8 errvel= .236418579e+#6
impact= 14 errmom= .921322575e+#8 errvel= .476037158e+#6
impact= 15 errmom= .15#921128e+#7 errvel= .715255737e+#6

impact thetam time dthetam dtime .0083 .1221 .1221 2 -.ØIJ17 .096.3 -.0019 Copy available to DTIC does not .3658 .2437 ۸ 8 \*na33 .6191 -.6831 .2443 permit fully legible reproduction

124

£ 0		2.0763	- 19923	.2445		
23	.Ø769	2.3246	<i>ม</i> 019	.2444		
31	.Ø744	2.5651	0025	.2444		
34	.W72Ø	2.8096	6024	.2445		
36	.0702	3.0541		.2445		
39	.Ø677	3.2906		.2444		
41	.0661	3.5431	0017	.2445		
44	.Ø635	3.7875	0025	.2444		
46	.ØG19	4.0321	ØD16	.2446		
49	.0593	4.2763	UJ26	.2443		
51	.0578	4.521 <i>ม</i>	CU16	.2446		
54	.Ø553	4.7653	0025	.2443		
56	.0539	5.0100	0015	.2447		
59	.0515	5.2542	0024	.2442		
62	.0495	5.4987	0020	.2446		
65	.£477	5.7434	0018	.2446		
68	.0458	5.9878	0018	.2445		
72	.#423	6.4766	0035	.4888		
74	.0405	6.7213	0018	.2446		
76	.8308	6.9659	UU17	.2447		
78	.£371	7.2107	DJ17	.2448		
80	.#354	7.4555	0017	.2448		
82	.#337	7.7.694	µµ17	.2449		
84	.6321	7.9454	0016	.2450 .		
86	.43.05	8.1905	0016	.2451		
88	.0285	8.4356	0016	.2451		
90	.0270	8.6803	0.16	.2452		
92	.#258	0.0261		.2452		
94	.#242	9.1714	eel5	.2453		
96	.1:227	9.4167	0015	.2454		
98	.6215	9.6621	10115	.2454		
100	.0195	9.9076	1015	.2455		
102	1.1	16.1531	0015	.2455		
104	.0165	10.3986		.2455		
147E	・1015日	10.6441	£016	.2455		
108	.1/1/2/4	14.8695	00116	.2454		
110	.6116	11.1346	D016	.2451		
112	.0101	11.3791	0316	.2445		

.2443

.2443

.2443

.2444

.2445

-.0026 -.0019 -.0029 -.0025 -.0023 -.0023

-.0016

.8544 1.0908 1.3401

1.5875

1.8319

2.80763 2.3208 2.5651 2.8096

T

114

.6986

11.6223

11 13 17

.0907 .0888

.6859

.0634

.0811

.0783 .0769 .0744 .0720

. -

114 .6086 11.6223 =..0016 .2432 up to the 47 peak the least squares fit to the \_\_\_\_\_peaks is thetam=g+s\*t with g= .3.501.5066-21 and s= -.765015681e-02 with max error= .470635900e-02 at peak= 2 and variance- .216564877e-03

.2432

Impact	timn	deltat	thetas	×	tdotv	xdot	thetam	dthetam
11611	.825:0	.134161	.00.41	096373	.1562	1.2056	.0073	
11711	.97174	.146609		.09//233	0467	7971	.3071	ທຸກທຸຽ
11812	122/34	.260399	0068	120500	.0376	.5171	.0070	ØU02
11917		.411131	101.20	.197523	1672	8221		- 10114
1.017	197 - 69	58067	P017	199203	1641	1344	. 2066	. 01001
12112	.976 0	.072569	- <b>.</b> H 55	117641	. ມິດອິຣ	. 3469	.4065	0001
1,515	157157	.597589	. 11 6.01	.118637	0486	.0017	.0062	0002
12014	.18704	.614369	496.5D	11/14/	.0722	. 48. 43	.ថលថណ	UUU3
12414	.65250	.464141	66	.#926#6	UN52	2829	.0058	
15016	41	.767514	C.J1	112261	.1172	. 4 13/2	.0055	4
12619	.821.00	.409673	16 31	. 038201	1090	6093	.0052	BCB3

.7005 .0348 12716.15927 .330205 -. MS13 -. 193324 .1195 -.0004 .16747 .115354 -.0136 -.113511 .0124 .9647 -.5475 -.0001 12816.47058 .311609 .3780 .0679 .0045 -.0002 12917.10638 .635502 .1693 13017.61648 .510098 13117.69831 .062035 13217.74047 .041660 .1001 .0044 -. 0001 .192575 -.0013 -.1583 .114828 .0044 ារ រោះ ខេត . 00 42 -.0280 -.2729 .0043 . ນິເມນິ .0011 .197791 -.1092 13318.37861 .638134 13418.81332 .435215 .8023 -.100418 .0072 .4307 .0041 -.ØUU3 ំពុកតុក្រុង .Ø555 . 011411 .0010 . 9008 .102675 13518.97399 .165166 13619.56527 .591286 -.0013 -.**0**967 -.3126 .0039 -.0001 .0945 .4661 .0037 -.0003 -.DUU3 -.106U37 . 0035 -.004Ø -.3499 ,ø93261 - . ROU1 13719.97539 .410620 -.0032 .4158 13820.519/73 .540105 13920.97719 .450164 .\$751 -.0002 -. SU15 -. 100/74 . 33 5 3 .0346 . 0000 -.ØD29 ຸມາຍງຮອ -.#968 .0032 .ACU1 -.105289 -.UU23 .099267 .0767 .2575 .0030 -.0183 14022.235361.258192 .0028 14122.89366 .650272 -.0124 -.1724 -.0001 -.0020 dthetam impact thetam time dtime 11.8626 . 0073 11.8626 116 -.0927 -.0003 118 . 8070 12.3470 .4844 121 .0065 13.0750 -.øc#5 .7287 14.29.55 -. BH95 1.2147 123 .0000 1.2126 125 .0055 15.5000 -. BU25 .0048 16.2304 -. 0007 .7274 127 16.4746 -. ØUU1 128 . 8847 .2444 17.2036 .0045 -.0002 .7288 129 .6044 .4851 130 17.6806 .Ø841 18.4162 -.0003 .7276 133 .4047 .0040 18.9009 .00000 134 -.0004 .7277 136 .0337 19.6206 138 . #933 20.5981 -.0004 .9694 .0032 21.0000 .4839 139 14Ø .0039 22.2950 -. Øbl3 1.2129 up to the 15 peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q= .1/አቻሪ3155e-#1 and s= -.420393998e-Ø3 with max error= .3985Ø8273e-Ø3 at peak= 15 and variance= .617Ø17292e-Ø6 Miximum deflection= -.190000001e+00 initial. the starting time= .SAUDDJUGUe+SS moment of fuertia of the primary mass= .107999994e+00 .1491.ນຽມມັນ5e-ມ2 length of the primary system= magnitude of the secondary mass= of restitution= .50000000000000000 2.210000004 the coefficient serondary mauses initial velocity\* .ມ.ມມມມີມີມີພະມີ the gap setting= .1927#8328e+ມີມ lesired number of impacts= 5ມ0 destred mass= .149000005e-02 qone= .258539356e+82 qtvo= 2.14788861 the time iteration did not converge for 1# 71 time deltat thetas .05501.055015 -.0124 -.10637.055460 .0867 .15103.044651 .0733 thetas x -.0124 -.12375? tdotv xdot thetam dthetam Impact 2.4275 8.1653 .09/2 ~.ØF53 .0964 .268024 1.0877 -.6340 .0522 2 .258450 -1.5436 -4.8528 .0944 -.0020 3 .19738 .#46057 -2.3144 -5.2392 .0009 -.0288 .032666 -. 0005 126

書 いいい たたり

.
• ? -..... -<u>-201077</u> -1250215 . 261 -.~: 2 . 52 . 7 - 2 . to 14 .0015 -.0024 1.40 ٣ .5 . . . . 11. .991 -. 0015 -. . . 6 . e 100210 -5.2626 7. . 8512 /1 -2.2024 .0054 -.0017 .436.25 -.9169 -.285313 .009 .251051 -.5751 -.271575 .501.17 .1162.040 5.7634 .9522 -.0011 .21.2 ß .142181 -1.1567 .64215 -9.92.55 9 .0029 -.HU43 19509 19625 . 6 . 11 . #86.14 -./216 .0010 10 .73: 36 1.2044 3. 84.46 -.UG/D -.24432D -.0014 11 .76000 4.9296 2.0639 -.0179 -.135941 .9016 .796:9 .028113 -.0000 12 .081712 .ມ77ຍ -. 0921 13 .87870 .266628 -.5133 .0735 1.80030 .1221.02 -.1.761 -.264588 .4111 3.6785 .1777 -.0018 14 1.13619 .135891 -5.1467 . 0741 -.JJ37 .0645 .238861 -.9460 15 .279396772e-Ø7 errvel= -.715055737e-Ø6 imhact= 1 errmom≐ impact= 2 errmom= .1117587096-07 errvel= -.476037158e-06 impact= 3 errmom= -.7450500000e-18 errvel= .3516273690-06 impact= 4 errmom= -.302738420e-07 errvel= . ສາກປາກປາກຄອ+ຄາ impact= 4 errmom= .322/30/22/2017/10/21 impact= 5 errmom= .22351741ue=07 errvel= impact= 6 errmom= -.372529000e=08 errvel= impact= 7 errnom= -.232830044e=08 errvel= impact= 8 errmom= .372529000=08 errvel= . ປະປະຊຸມປາຍເປດ+ຢຢ .DHOLDULLUUC+DD .35/0276690-06 impact= 9 errses= -.7450580000-18 errvel= . JE SHE MANER OF HAD impact= 10 orrncm= -.111/55200a-07 orrvol= .00000000000e+00 impact= 11 orrnom= .9313225750-09 orrvol= -.1192092900-06 .DAMMONT ONC+BB .4912726586-87 orrvel= . ອະນາກການຄຸດກໍາສຸດ impact= 12 errmom= impact thetam time dthetam dtime .1238 .0964 .1238 -.0035 2 5 .0915 ,3699 -.ØV49 .2462 .6177 -. 0043 .2478 8 .£372 .0316 .8656 -. 19156 .2479 12 14 17 1.1137 .2481 .0777 -. 8039 . 1727 .2481 1.3617 -.0050 .2480 1.6098 -.##43 2Ø .1684 1.8502 23 .0640 -. £044 .2484 26 . \$594 2.1866 -. ØD46 .2484 28 .0562 2.3053 -.0032 .2487 .8512 2.6035 2.8525 -.0050 .2482 31 . и 482 .2490 33 -. 0020 .2476 3.1001 -.0049 36 . \$ 434 39 .1:395 3.3409 -.0039 .2488 .4971 43 .0315 3.8459 -.00000 45 .0279 4.0959 -.0037 .2500 .6243 47 4.3463 -.0036 .2505 .1200 49 4.5973 -.0036 .2509 . 1170 4.8487 -.0030 .2514 51 5.1005 -.E037 .2518 53 .0133 55 .0094 5.3519 -.0039 .2514 57 . 0056 5.5972 -.0039 .2453 up to the 22 peal the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q= -957418606c-fi and s= -.164172854e-01 with max error= .272371181e-02 at peak= | and variance= .372083668e-04 peal 1 and variances time deltat tdotv xdot thetam dthetam impact thetas ٠ 127

and a start of the second s Second second

2

67

59 5.88442 .199719 60 7.125271.244654 -.1293 .øз9ø .0009 -.094315 .0051 .0006 -.0024 .090963 -.0036 -.104315 - .0981 .0045 -.3624 -.øog6 -.Ø698 -.0549 .0045 .0000 61 7.62555 .50U273 .1148 -.0043 -.105942 7.66£62 .035078 .0280 .10045 . ພຽບອ 62 63 7.67569 .819863 .0766 .1933 . 0844 . ໑ຆຆຏ -.8833 -.103666 .2289 .0844 . ຍາວອກ 64 7.69195 .Ø12266 -.0622 -.101259 .8969 . 11144 -. DU13 -. 099239 .2451 . 9869 65 7.70070 .00075U .1595 .1105 66 7.70083 .000125 -.01.14 -.097233 .2519 . 11 11 4 4 .0000 67 8.33603 .620LU7 -.0019 .#92121 -.0063 -.4279 .0038 -.ØUUG 68 8.73245 .395616 69 9.32574 .595290 . 6098 .DD27 -.Ø38246 .2601 .8037 -.0002 -.2404 .0034 -. JUN 2 -.0032 .089229 -.#311 .0032 -.009240 -.0014 .008827 .0345 -. 0269 . 0034 -.ØU01 70 9.95603 .630293 7114.950055.000020 . มัยมม united . . UDDD -.øøз4 .UNCHD\*\*\*\*\*\*\* . ແບນສ 72 . 86.09 . Densing. . 0000 .0000 .0000 . NOTAR . NOTARA . N 73 . CEGA .0000 . DUND .oudø .0000 . Outog 74 . 00.00 . ທິນເປັນປ .00.00 . 0000 . 0000 .BUL JD .DUGLUB . ບົດການ 75 . Obudi . พมพพ .0000 .DUUA .an un .andern .0001000 . WUDU .0000 .0000 76 . 10 10 10 13 . ມມບບກ .ມວກຍາຍອ CUUB. .061 112 .01011-00 . ມມມນ 77 . 61. 111 asua. للمازدرد . . DD dH 78 . ພາະ ບໍ່, ພະ ແມ່ນ . #19-164 .0000000 .0000 • 6705 J .ពៈពេល . #00.040 .ບມນມ 79 .0020 .00000 .100000 .0. 0.0 .000000 .00 .00 .0000.00 εø . 11, 141 .00000000 .0000 . 15 ...... .ມານມູປ .ມາມຢ .0.00 .ມວນນ . 0. 16 930 .0000 .ສຽມສ 61 .DUFON .USCOUR .EDE DI .IDIOLEN .996.2 .0000 . 11 11 11 11 . ມກາມສ . Washed .0000000 32 . 1. 10 10 .0000 .øuru . ພນມນ . 00000000 . លាមមា 83 .ยธะเวล .ยอมงมย . ..... . ៧៧៧៧ . 4000 814 .00000 ານກະບອນ . 66930 impact thetam time 66 .0044 7.7729 dthetam dtime 7.7729 -.0956 .9635 8.7364 68 .0037 up to the 2 peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q= .101250373e-01 and s= -.730763643e-03 with max error= .139690386e-08 at peak= 1 and variance= .216848434e-17 initial phase angle= .000000000Ce+00 maximum deflection= -.100000001e+00 initial primary mass= .107999994e+88 .5838888812e-w2 length of the primary system= of restitution= .588888888488 magnitude of the secondary mass= 2.21000004 the coefficient initial velocity= secondary masses .DDJDDJJDDe+BJ the gap setting= .164803332e+DD desired number of impacts= 500 mass= .503000012e-02 x(#)= -.130553335e+6# deltate 1959 15978e-02 e4 .5000000 2000000 gone= .255900096e+02 qtwo= 2.14339324 the time iteration did not converge for i= 41 impact Line deltat thetas tdotv xdot thotam dthetam х .05079 .050792 .10251 .951744 -.N254 -.138135 2.0686 7.3171 .0038 -.Ø162 1 .0717 .240505 .8561 1.4868 . 1919 . 8932 .273208 -.5954 .141/8 .039242 .0865 -2.6015 .0395 -.0025 з -4.1433 .0068 -.0026 .16324 .021962 .0605 4 .215797 -1.6160 5 ,17-35 .015205 . 6320 **.152697** -2.0544 -4.7726 .0055 -.D014 -.0013 -4.9217 -. ຢມ04 15332 .015371 .\$79271 -2.2029 .0051 G

128

-.0821 -.263509 .26476 .Ø6974Ø 7 .0693 3.2036 .Ø822 -.0029 .067042 8 .30110 .0100 -. \$46792 1.9733 5.0326 .3779 -. JU143 9 .391'38 .059205 .1765 .251094 .1063 -2.6491 .0766 -.0613 .062228 -4.9173 1.0 .45261 .0011 .084533 . \$713 -1.8462 -.0053 .065655 .51827 -.87.06 -.238027 11 2.2220 .0711 -.2JJ7B -.0002 .57799 .059725 -. 0098 12 -.103753 1.6801 4.5869 .0656 -.0055 .64971 .271722 13 .0647 .225099 .165.0 -2.1762 .0651 -.0005 .71057 .063854 .0011 .#04491 14 -1.5622 -4.1974 . NGN3 -.Ø£47 .78416 .0711489 -.0584 -.211164 15 -.0235 2.4422 .0504 -.0019 impact= 1 errmom= -.521540642e-07 errvel= .953674316e-Ø6 impact= 2 errmom= .ມມນນແມ່ນເມື່ອງ errvel= .238418579e-06 impact= 3 errmom= .745058060e-03 erryel= -.119209290e-06 impact= 4 errmom= .745058060e-08 errvel= .1192092900-06 impact= 5 .265426934e-07 errvei= errmom= -.715255737e-Ø6 Impact = 6 -.570435077e-08 errycl= errmon--.238418579e-Ø6 errwom= -.745#58#(Je-#8 errve)= -.238418579e-#6 impact= 7 impact= 8 crrnom= -.242143800c-07 errv@l= -.119209290e-06 impact= 9 errnom= .NUUSJUJ DE\*EN erryel= ∴ນມ≣ະສະຫມານມະ**+ນນ** impacts 10 errichs -. /450500.000-08 errvel= .476837158e-06 .UCDUDDLine+UU errvel= impact≠ 11 connoa# .ນແນນນູນການທີອ+ນູນ impact= 12' orrmom= -.1002645150-07 orrvol= .8244650270-06 impact= 13 errnom= .745#50/6#0-#8 errvel= . ມມມມມມມມູທີ່ອ+00 impact= 14 errmom= .186264515e-07 errvel= -.476837158e-Ø6 .UJUUUUUUUe+UU errvel= impact= 15 errmom= . NOUNDANANGe+00 Impact thetam time dthetam dtime 2 .Ø919 .1286 -.0081 .1286 8 .0779 .3837 -.Ø141 .2551 9 . #766 .3925 -.0013 .0088 12 .6444 -.0110 .0656 .2519 .6535 13 .\$651 -.øøøs .0091 19 . #48# 1.1667 -.0171.5132 1.4297 22 .£382 -.0098 .2630 25 . 8388 1.6933 -.0%81 .2636 29 .0097 2.2223 -.0203 .5290 up to the 9 peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetam=q+s\*t with q= .921930224c-01 and s= -.374944247e-01 with max error= .457199011e-02 at peak= Impact time deltat thetas tdotv xdot thetam dthetam 2.43332 .183959 .0011 -.879687 .8668 31 .0806 .0033 -.8041 .176336 32 2.60966 -.0032 .074957 -.2373 .0010 .0045 .8812 33 3.16260 .552939 -. 874283 .0535 .1349 .2674 .0038 -.0007 3.70678 .544179 -.#529 -.3393 34 . UL 15 .085272 .ØØ25 -.0013 .437099 -. 076860 35 4.14088 .0023 .1675 -.Ø12Ø . 8024 -.0001 36 4.91273 .760857 .8007 -.0009 .033605 -.0349 -.215Ø .0015 37 .637461 5.55019 .1773 . GL 115 -.081025 .0127 .0007 -.0008 .737324 38 6.20752 .0105 .083247 .0209 -.0294 . 3010 .0003 39 7.532301.244704 . 5009 -. #811147 -.0013 .0084 .0009 -.0001 40 8.862001.325999 -.00003 .030184 . ພະຍະມາຍ .00008 -.01u5 -.0001

129

-.017012

• คพุทคนถ

. NNNNNNN

.0000000

. NEW UND

.0005

. 01 - 1

. ......

MANA

يدرد بدور

4113.862325.000020

· DEL 00 \*\*\*\*

BURNUL BURNES

42

43

45

. 0000

annon

. .....

. (10.00

.0000

.0000

.01100

.0000

. . . . . .

. ມິນມີມ

. 8448

.0000

. .....

-.0008

. .....

. 8988

.0003

. ......

46	. 20000	anaras. I	.0600	.000309	.0000	.0000		. 5588
47	.00000	. OUTFUD	.សម្មស្រ	. OUDFUD	. 0000	.0000	.0000	.0000
48		េលវាមួយចាប់	.0000	.Danjon	. שיגעה	.0000	. សមភាអ	. 8800
49	. 80390	ເ . ຍນແນນຍ	.0000	.0000000	. ຍມານ	. 60110	. 0600	. ອິນນອ
5.8			.01.00	. ມວທລຍທ	. 00.011	. សភាសថ	. 001.0	. 8080
51	.001.30		. 61. 94		. #0.00	. ຍະມະນ	. ນມນມ	. 0000
52	. #. Cou		. D. U.U.	. ສະພະ ເພ	. ພມ ຕໍ່ມ	.acos	. DADA	.0000
53	.16:00	. BUULDO	. 61. 93		. ມມຸມມ	. มะษม		
54	لدلنية ذلك	.0es 10	. វីរដដែ	. ມີມັບນັ້ນຍ	, មហ្គល	. ອິນມູນ	.សសស	
55	. 6.01.30		. มีมูมท	. 601.000	. ມິມເມ		. ມມມອ	.0000
56	. 600.00	.0000000	.0000	. พฤคลาก	. 6000	. 8008	. 80.00	. 8088
impact	thatam	time	dthetam	dtime				
31	.0033	2.4812	Ø267	2.4812				
32	.0045	2.7011	.0012	.2199				
33	.6028	3.1766	0007	.4755				
37	. 5007	5.5017	0031	2.4051				
38	. 6010	6.3252	.0003	.7435				

**40** .6000 6.9822 .0003 .7435 **40** .6000 6.9823 -.8001 2.6571 up to the 6 peak the least squares fit to the peaks is thetem=q+s\*t with q= .51204497 $\mu$ c-02 and s= -.569925618e-03 with max error= .840139110e-03 at peak= **6** and variance= .300157439e-05

Reproduced from best available copy. Ó

T30

<u>Vita</u>

5

Bruce W. Gibson was born on 12 September 1957 in Tallahassee, Florida. He graduated from Taylor County High School in Perry, Florida in 1975 and attended Duke University. He graduated with a B.A. in Mathematics in May 1979 and received a commission in the USAF through the ROTC program. He entered active duty in November 1979 and was selected for the Air Force Institute of Technology's first Undergraduate Aeronautical Engineer Conversion Program, which ran from August 1980 to March 1981. He received his B.S. in Aeronautical Engineering from AFIT and was selected for continuation in the Graduate Astronautical Engineering Program.

> Permanent Address: 500 W. Plantation Road Perry, Florida 32347

> > 131

REPORT DOCUMENT	TATION PAGE	READ INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING FORM
1. REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSIO	N NO. 3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER
AFIT/GA/AA/83M-2	40-A135	645
4. TITLE (and Subtitle)		5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED
MUR HERRIINESS OF IMDACT	T DAMDEDC FOD	Master I Master
SPACE APPLICATIONS	Master's Thesis	
		6. PERFORMING ORG, REPORT NUMBER
7. AUTHOR(#)		8. CONTRACT OF GRANT NUMBER()
Bruce W. Gibson, B.S.,	lst Lt, USAF	
9. PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND	ADDRESS	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK
		AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS
Air Force Institute of 1 Wright-Patterson AFB, Ol	Technology (AFIT/ hio 45433	(EN)
11. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADD	RESS	12. REPORT DATE
		March 1983
		13. NUMBER OF PAGES
14. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRES	S(if different from Controlling Of	fice) 15. SECURITY CLASS, (of this report)
		UNCLASSIFIED
		ISA DECLASSIEICATION DOWNGRADING
		SCHEDULE
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about	ease; distributio	on unlimited
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	ease; distributio	on unlimited
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17.
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17.
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Sector (ATC). 13 9 SEP 1983
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abote 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, 11 differ Approved for public releases Unit E. WOLAVER Death for Research and Prole Air Force Institute of Techaol Wright-Patterson AFR OM 43 Decessory and identify by block m	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Have AFR 190-17.
Approved for public relations 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, if different Entered in Block 20, if dif	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Sector (ATC). Sector (ATC).
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping	act entered in Block 20, if differ Approved for public releases UNCLE LINE E. WOLAVER Dech for Research and Prote Air Force Institute of Techaol Wright-Patterson AFE OM 43 recessery and identify by block no	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Have AFR 190-17.
Approved for public relation 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) LAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Sessional Development logy (ATC). Sumber) Second Development Second Developm
Approved for public relation 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration	act entered in Block 20, if differ Approved for public releases ITHE E. WOLAVER Deck for Research and Prote Air Force Institute of Techaol Wright-Patterson AFA OM 4 Successery and identify by block no	on unlimited ent from Report) LAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Sectional Development logy (ATC). Sectional Development umber) 9 SEP 1983 umber)
Approved for public rele 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, 11 differ	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. resional Development legy (ATC). WAJ umber)
Approved for public relation 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Sessional Development logy (ATC). Solution umber) mper in eliminating
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, 11 differ Approved for public releases Unit E. WOLAVER Death for Research and Prole Air Force Institute of Techaol Wright-Patterson AFE 04 43 recessory and identify by block nu of the impact dat nalytically and of brating systems	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. resional Development legy (AtC) Will umber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, if different act entered in Block 20, if different	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. IAW AFR 190-17. Iaw AFR 190-17. Iaw AFR 190-17. Isosof Development logy (ATC). Sold umber) Imber) Imper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc or eliminating forced a	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, 11 different if the E. WOLAVER Deck for Research and Prote Air Force Institute of Techaol Wright-Patterson AFE OM 43 recessery and identify by block no of the impact day nalytically and of brating systems a se of the impact of and free vibration	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Have AFR 190-17. Have AFR 190-17. Have AFR 190-17. By SEP 1983 Will umber) mber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing ns. A computer simu-
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc or eliminating forced a lation of a single degr	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Area (ATC) Will umber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing ns. A computer simu- imary system in free
Approved for public rela 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 7. 78. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 78. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 79. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 70. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc or eliminating forced a lation of a single degr	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Assional Development logy (ATC) Wall umber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing ns. A computer simu- imary system in free
Approved for public rela 17. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 18. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 19. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 20. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc or eliminating forced a lation of a single degr	ease; distributio	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. resional Development eqr (ATC) Will umber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing ns. A computer simu- imary system in free
Approved for public rela 77. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetr 78. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 78. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 79. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if n Impact Damper Acceleration Damper Damping Structural Oscillation Structural Oscillation Structural Vibration 70. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if ne The usefulness vibrations is studied a Laboratory models of vi evaluate the performanc or eliminating forced a lation of a single degr DD 1 JAN 73 1473 EDITION OF 1 NOV 6	ease; distribution act entered in Block 20, If different act entered in Block 20, If different	on unlimited ent from Report) IAW AFR 190-17. Assicated Development logy (ATC). Sold umber) mper in eliminating experimentally. are constructed to damper in reducing ns. A computer simu- imary system in free UNCLASSIFIED

.

Ö

-



